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Dear Shareholders

Th is has been cai maiked by cconornic changc adjustments
and na

rcncs ed focus on our coi busincss in ordcr to achicvc
proRtahlc rcsu its Kcithicv Instrurncnts cxpcncnccd significant

dcciinc saics in au

in thc cornii ycai Ccrtainiy thc
impact

ofthc global rcccssion was rcgions
ofthc world during hscai 2009 as tcsuit ofthc scs ci cconornic

cit fai bcyond our ompany and thc Tcst and Mcasuicrncnt industry downturn Oi dcrs from thc Cornpan scm iconductoi custorncrs

As rcsuit vc havc uscd this
point in timc to reasscss nd

cadjust our dccrcascd approxirnatciy 50
pcrccnt

otdcrc fmrn ircicsc communication

plans
and stiucturc customcts dccicascd approximatciy 75 pcrccnt

ordcrs from
piccision

fl

eicctronics customcrs dccicascd aooroximatciv 30 ncrccnt and ordcrs

Piscai 2009 was an cxti cmciy cnaiicnging car nowcs cr we am
optimistic

from rcscarch and cduc tion customcrs dccicascd aooroximatciv 10

aDout Out ruturc wc aic cncouiagca tnatssc cxpciicncco scqucntiai

CC ocrcent comoaied to fiscal 2008 Ordcrs from thc too customcrs in

incrcascs in oiocrs outing tnt iast two quattcrs or nscai 2009 rrom tncii

low ic ci sct in thc March
quaitcr

Wc madc difficult dccisions any givcn cai havc historically accountcd foi approximately 20 to 30

ucrccnt ofoui total ordcis

tnrougnout
mc ycai to minirnizc tnc amount or casn usco anti icoucc

costs most notably cxiting two of our pi
oduct lines and significantly Duiing

fiscal 2009 we reported net sales of S1025 million 33 percent

icducing our woildwidc head count We believe that these actions will dcci ease from S152.5 million in the
prior year

Net loss foi the ear ss as

increase our profitability in fiscal 2010 million oi S3.23
per

share which includes 395 million for non

cash haigc to reser\ foi the Company defcned tax assets severance

charges
and the costs associated with the exit ofa product

line

LI he Company sed a5.4 million in cash from
opeiations during fiscal 2009

Cash ind short term investments were S25.4 million at September 30 2009

It
appeai

as we write to ou that the significant declines in business and we iepoited no outstanding debt Oui accounts receivable days sales

conditions arc behind us and some sectors ofthe electronics industi are outstandingss crc 47 at both September 30 2009 and
yeai ago Inventory

showing signs ofimprovensent Although gratifying it iemains neleai turns improved to 45 at September 30 2009 from 2.7 ayear ago

how soon this wiii translate into bioad based retuin to Test and

Measuiement investment by oui production customeis



Broad Expense Reduction

We took decisive actions this
year to respond as credit markets froze and

customers dramatically curtailed their
spending in every geographic

region
that we serve Our

cost-saving measures were designed to increase

our efficiency
and refine our competitive

focus We tooJ steps to manage

our short-term financial
position without losing focus on long-term

objectives for market
position

and
technology roadmaps

We reduced
product development and

selling general
and administrative

costs in fiscal 2009 by approximately $24 million with
variety

of actions

that were significant to the Company and to our employees During the

fiscal
year we implemented hiring freeze and 20

percent
workforce

reduction along with reducing compensation through temporary salary

reductions We are grateful to our employees for the confidence they

have shown in the Company and their dedication to achieving our long-

term goals together Beyond these moves we reduced our dividend

lowered
capital expenditures and ended our share repurchase program

During
the

year we announced that we would discontinue
investing in

and marketing our Series S600
product line The decision to phase out

the S600
product line allowed us to sharpen our focus in product

development spending by allocating
dollars to those product lines and

applications
that

align more tightly with the Companys strategy
for

long-term growth

1ttYe took steps to manage om shod-tom tnanca

posHon W3 host odng tocus on ong-tem ojecives

mmket oosft.on and echnoogy roadmaos

Most recently we completed the sale of substantially all of our RF

measurement products for $9 million The
impact

of the economic

downturn pushed our the
expected timing of the returns that we were

anticipating Because we have placed high emphasis on profitability in

seal 2010 and beyond we concluded that we could no longer contintie

to support otir significant investment in this product category
and

should instead focus on growing our core btisiness We
anticipate

recognizing gain
of $2.0 to $3.0 million in the first

quarter
of fiscal

2010 as result of this transaction

Creating Competitive Advantage Through
Measurement Technology

Keithley is positioned as an electrical measurement technology
leader for

applications requiring
advanced electrical test performance Our

solutions offer
unique synchronized current-voltage measurement

capabilities that when coupled with our deep applications knowledge

make measurements rapidly easily and accurately Our
competitive

advantage rests in this ability to make complex demanding

measurements in ways
that are simple and fast Wherever measurement

performance is critical whether its in the research lab or on the

production floor Keithley test instruments provide an ideal solution

such as using
the Model 4200 in Hall Effect measurement system to

characterize new semiconductor material

We remain an important partner to our customers because of this

strategy
In fact even during this economy our orders remained

relatively stable from
government university

and
corporate

research

and
development facilities in all

regions
of the world This has

been historic sector of market
leadership for Keithley and we expect

it to continue to show
encouraging

resuirs as governments maintain

spending levels in computing communications and now energy-

conservation technologies

Product Innovation Drives Market Penetration

Kcithley competes in new-product-driven industry where advances in

measurement performance are the lifeblood of our
ability

to
compete

and

expand
market share As the global economic conditions continued to

worsen during fiscal 2009 it became more difficult for us to continue our

product development spending at historical levels We chose to reduce

these costs selectively and our product development is now more focused

on expanding
and

enhancing otir core product line We will continue to

invest in areas where we can gain
the most leverage

from our position

Kcithley enjoys
tremendous market

adoption of our solutions
serving

semiconductor research and
development And our position

is further

leveraged into production process
control

monitoring
where similar

precise measurements of semiconductor devices are required During

fiscal 2009 Keithley launched new line ofS53O Parametric Test Systems

which are built on our proven DC source-measure switching
and

capacitance-voltage instrumentation The S530 is ideal for
process

control

monitoring
in compound semiconductor and silicon fabs

up to 200mm
this contrasts with our S680 users at high-volume 300mm fabs

typically

associated DRAM flash
memory and

microprocessor production The

flexible hardware architecture and ACS test software of the S530 make

them ideal for automated device characterization and
reliability analysis

for all
technologies

and labs
throughout the semiconductor indtistry

During fiscal 2009 Keithlcy launched ACS Basic Edition for

characterization of semiconductor
components

This is the latest addition

to Keithleys powerful Automated Characterization Suite ACS family

and
integrates with Keirhleys SourccMeter instruments for East and

precise measurements Component research and development tisers can

characterize their devices across wide
range ofvoltage and cLirrent values

including familiar curve tracer
type testing

Later in the
year

we

introdticed ACS Basic Edition Version 1.1 adding support
for all of

Keithicys source-measure units SMUs the broadest
range

in the

industry ACS Basic Edition now also
supports combining

different SMU
models into single test allowing easier configuration test creation and

test execution with no need to write code ACS Basic Edition in

addition to standard ACS which provides full wafer-level and automatic

prober testing are combined with Keirhley instruments integrated test

systems
and turnkey S530 Parametric Test Systems to provide powerful

spectrum
of solutions to this

important customer sector

For other semiconductor lab applications we continued to build
upon

the

capabilities of our award-winning Model 4200 Semiconductor

Characterization
System platform one of the Companys most successful

product categories With an expanded frequency range
for

important

capacitance-voltage tests and new test libraries for solar cell device tests

the Model 4200-SCS platform remains staple for device test engineers

seeking to optimize their
component

and material
designs



System switching continues to be an important enabling platform for our

customers and we strengthened our product line with several

announcements during
the

year
The new Model 3731 high speed matrix

switching card combined with our Series 2600A SourccMeter

instruments is an ideal combination for customers needing high

throughput
multi-channel current-voltage testing We also added Web-

based
graphing

toolkit to the Series 3700 System Switch/Multimcter

platform
that provides quick and

easy way
to observe measurement data

without the need for programming

1Kethey nstruments remaHs commtted to

servng the chaengng mateHas dedce and

process measurement reqdrements that enabe

nnovaton wtHn the eectroHcs Hdustryt

Operational Contributions to Financial Performance

During 2009 we initiated variety of cost-reduction programs
that

reached deep within our operations
and manufacturing organization

Our approach is to minimize extraneous cost in
process buildings

and

fixed assets so we can direct cash to investments that make
tangible

difference in improving product performance
and at the same time

minimize the amount of cash used As lean
organization we continue

to create ways to reduce non-value-added processes in our Company

We realigned our outsourcing relationships to fit current demand levels

and brought in house our outsourccd production Outsourcing remains

an important part
of our

strategy
as flexible variable cost to complement

our fixed assets As our revenues increase we will
likely outsource again

Our
design manufacturing and service teams collaborated closely during

the
product development process

in order to eliminate costs from
product

designs at the earliest
stages possible Those teams drew

upon
the skills of

our sourcing team who continued their efforts to direct
component

purchases to new suppliers particularly
in low-cost regions

The
impact

of

these teams in eliminating costs from our design and production process

has been success story
for Keithley during the

past
few

years

Performance Outlook

We are planning for an uncertain 2010 Even with
very conservative

growth plans the cost reductions we have made should enable us to be

profitable in 2010

While macroeconomic signs at the close of calendar 2009 are

encouraging the financial shock experienced by governments

institutions and
companies

around the world are both significant
and

serious The effects of 2009s lack of consumer confidence will continue

to be felt
during

the coming year so we will continue to manage the

Company with confidence balanced with caution Although many of

our customers arc now beginning to show
signs

of increased
spending on

production test and measurement equipment we will continue to

maintain our tight
control of

expenses
in

ways
that do not jeopardize our

ability
to expand our market

position

The reductions in our workforce and changes in our product portfolio

were painful
decisions Yet our actions significantly

reduced our break-

even level and allowed us to continue to invest in our future The

investments made in revitalizing our core businesss product offering

during the last several
years

have built platform of solutions that are

compelling to our customers and
competitive in the marketplace

Keithley
Instruments remains committed to serving

the
challenging

materials device and
process

measurement requirements
that enable

innovation within the electronics industry and to supporting our

thousands of customers in the semiconductor wireless precision

electronics and research and education industry groups serving

applications in research development and production
The divestiture of

our RF product
line enables us to increase our focus on our core

customers who need
high performance source-measure units

semiconductor characterization and sensitive instrumentation

complemented by our capabilities in switching power supplies DMMs
and software We intend to expand our efforts to leverage our core

strengths in support
of new growth opportunities such as advanced

materials research nanotechnology-enablcd
electronic devices high

brightness LEDs wide
range

of new solid-state memory technologies

including SONOS and PRAM thin film technology for solar cells

lower-power-consuming microprocessors
and other energy-efikiency

related devices and materials Today our Company is focused on these

opportunities
with leaner infrastructure lower breakeven point

and

selling model to effectively serve our large
and small accounts

Two of our long-time
Board members retired this

year James Bartlett

and Elton White We are grateful to them for the
years

of insight and

stewardship they have
given

the Company

This has been
year

in which we have been tested in many respects
Our

product portfolio selling strategy
financial models and leadership were

all submitted to the most intense review by the market our customers

our employees and you our shareholders We thank our employees for

their sacrifices
passion

teamwork and commitment to our customers

We are grateful to both our shareholders and employees for the
support

and commitment each has shown our Company during 2009 We are

cager
to

carry
our plans into 2010 and return to profitability

Joseph Keithley

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

.Rae
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
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Forward-Looking Statements

Statements and information included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not purely historical are forward-looking statements intended

to he covered by the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

Forward-looking statements in this Report on Form 10-K include statements regarding Keithleys expectations intentions beliefs and
strategies

regarding the future including recent trends cyclicality growth in the markets into which Keithley sells conditions of the electronics industry

and the
economy in general expected cost savings from recent cost-cutting actions deployment of our own sales employees throughout the

world investments to develop new products the potential impact of adopting new accounting pronouncements our future effective tax rates

liquidity position ability to generate cash expected growth and obligations under our retirement benefit plans

When used in this report the words believes expects anticipates intends assumes estimates evaluates opinion forecasts

may could future forward potential probable and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements

These forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties We
may

make other forward-looking statements from time to time including in

press releases and public conference calls and wehcasts All forward-looking statements made by Keithley are based on information available to us at

the time the statements are made and we assume no obligation to update any forward-looking statements It is important to note that the forward

looking statements are subject to number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those included in such

forward-looking statements Some of these risks and uncertainties are discussed below in Item 1A Risk Factors of this Form 10-K

PART
ITEM BUSINESS

General

Keithley Instruments Inc was founded in 1946 and organized as an Ohio corporation in 1955 Its principal executive offices are located at

28775 Aurora Road Solon Ohio 44139 telephone 440 248-0400 References herein to the Company Keithley we or our are to Keithley

Instruments Inc and its subsidiaries unless the context indicates otherwise

We design develop manufacture and market complex electronic instruments and systems geared to the specialized needs of electronics

manufacturers for high-performance production testing process monitoring product development and research Through November 2009 we

had approximately 500 products used to source measure connect control or communicate direct current DC radio frequency RF or optical

signals Our product offerings include integrated systems solutions along with instruments and personal computer PC plug-in boards that

can be used as system components or stand-alone solutions Our customers are scientists and engineers in the worldwide electronics industry

involved with advanced materials research semiconductor device development and fabrication and the production of end products such as

portable wireless devices

During fiscal 2009 approximately 20 percent of our orders were received from the semiconductor industry approximately percent came

from the wireless communications customer group approximately 30 percent came from the precision electronics customer group which

includes customers in automotive computers and peripherals medical equipment aerospace and defense and manufacturers of components

and approximately 40 percent came from research and education customers The remainder of orders came from customers in variety of other

industries Although our products vary in capability sophistication use size and price they generally test measure and analyze electrical optical

or physical properties As such we consider our business to be in single industry segment

On November 19 2009 the Company announced it entered into Purchase and Sale Agreement Purchase Agreement with Agilent

Technologies Inc Agilent with respect to the sale of its RF product line Under terms of the Purchase Agreement the Company sold

substantially all assets of the RF product line for cash purchase price of $9.0 million and Agilent assumed related contractual including lease

obligations product support and other liabilities and hired the majority of the employees of the RF team.The Company is prohibited from

competing against Agilent with respect solely to the RF product line until November 30 2012 Agilent will continue to support the RF product line

for our RF customers Both Keithley and Agilent agreed to customary indemnification obligations with respect to the representations warranties

and covenants of both parties in the Purchase Agreement References to the Companys RF product line contained herein refer to its historical

relationship as part of the Companys operations unless otherwise indicated

Business Strategy

We have focused our efforts on identifying test applications within segments of the electronics test and measurement industry that have high

rates of technology change long-term growth in demand and meaningful market size and that leverage our measurement capabilities and/

or other test applications New products are an important factor in our sales growth strategy and we have generally sought to maintain our

investment in product development activity spending levels to expand our product offering and accelerate the introduction of new products

During fiscal 2009 however the
significant

decline in our revenues as result of global economic conditions made it difficult for us to continue

product development spending at historical levels As result we selectively reduced these costs most notably by exiting our S600 parametric

test line reducing worldwide headcounts eliminating or curtailing various discretionary spending items and in early fiscal 2010 selling our RF

product line Our product development spending is now more focused on expanding and enhancing our core product lines

We work closely with our customers to build partnerships in order to anticipate their current and future measurement needs thorough

understanding of their applications coupled with our precision measurement technology enables us to add value to our customers processes

improving the quality throughput and yield of their products as well as to determine which test applications we will choose to serve We believe

our ability to serve our customers has been aided by deploying our own sales and support employees throughout the Americas Europe and Asia

as opposed to relying on an independent sales force



We leverage our applications expertise and product platforms to other industries By concentrating on interrelated industries and product

technologies we are able to gain insight into measurement problems experienced by one set of customers that can he addressed and offered as

solutions for others Our applications knowledge and technology solutions in one area build credibility as we expand to related fields often using

the same measurement platforms that arc already proven among variety of customers

Product Offerings

During fiscal 20u9 20u8 and 2uu we had approximately 500 products used to source measure connect control or coinniunicat direct current

RF or optical signals Product offerings include integrated systems solutions along with instruments and PC plug-in boards that can be used as

system components or stand-alone solutions Prices per product vary Our semiconductor characterization stem ranges in price from $30000

to $75000 Bench top instruments generally range
in price from $1000 to 25000 on stand-alone basis and from $15000 to $35000 when used

as system Switch sstems generally range in price from $2000 to $50000 PC plug-in hoards are used for process control and data collection

applications and in production test for machine builders and system integrators Selling prices generally range from $200 to $4000 In February

2009 sse announced the exit of our S600 series parametric test product line We will continue to accept orders for the S600 products until

February 2010 and will continue to provide technical support calibration and repair services for five years through February 2014 In November

2009 we sold substantially all of our RF product line which will continue to he supported by Agilent

New Products During Fiscal Year 2009

Our objective is to grow
faster than the overall test and measurement industr hs pursuing applications that outpace overall demand for test and

measurement equipment New protlucts pla critical i-ole in providing us the opportunity to achiese this higher growth rate During fiscal 2009

we introduced several new products and enhancements that add complementary capability to our product offering These products provide our

customers with critical tools to serve their production test application and research and development needs

We continued to enhance our Model 4200 Semicondtictor Characterization S\stem by adding variet\ of hardware firmware and software

enhancements to serve broad range
of semiconductor research and development groups including those involved with high density integrated

circuits compound semiconductor devices power transistors solar cells and other related technologies The upgrades include nine new solar cell

test libraries including the latest techniques in thin film profiling Other enhancements include expanded frequency range for C-V measurements

and support for the extended nine-slot Model 4200-SCS instrument chassis Solar cell applications are increasingly important given the growing

interest and government support
for alternative energy technologies

The Company also introduced the test and measurement industrys only cabling solution capable of handling DC Current-Voltage I-V

Capacitance-Voltage and pulsed I-V signals with single set of cables eliminating the need for re-cabling when switching between measurement

types and also eliminating the measurement errors that often result from cabling errors The patented cables are designed for compatibility with

Keithleys Model 4200-SCS as well as with other test instruments used for characterization

We announced ACS Basic Edition characterization and curve tracer software for component test applications This software product is another

addition to Keithleys powerful Automated Characterization Suite ACS famil1 which provides an integrated solution for test management and

analysis with Keithleys SourceMeter Instrument family that performs comprehensive device parameter analysis as well as basic curve tracing

at low cost of ownership While initial ACS systems were designed for larger semiconductor lab applications ACS Basic Edition systems provide

an economical bench-top solution for component test applications

We released the S530 Parametric Test System that is ideal for low-volume semiconductor device companies and research institutes that contain

fabrication facilities Such customers often require automated sstems that provide greater flexibility
and lower price than high-volume

parametric test systems The S530 is based on Keithleys Automated Characterization Suite test software which can be applied to individual

instruments as well as automated test systems such as the S530 The S530 is another demonstration of the Companys emphasis on serving the

semiconductor industry with instruments software and systems as well as decades of semiconductor test applications knowledge

Keithley intioduced the Model 3390 50MHz Arbitrary Waveform/Function Generator flexible easy-to-use programmable signal generator with

advanced function pulse and arbitrary waveform capabilities The Model 3390 features high waveform resolution for its class

The Company also expanded its Series 3700 System Switch Multimeter and plug-in card family with new high speed matrix card the Model

3731 anda Web-browser-based graphing toolkit Keithles Series 3700 instruments offer scalable high-performance switching and multi-channel

measurements that are strengthened h1
the

array
of cards and software used for automated testing of electronic products and components

With regard to our RF product family wt announced thy availability of Model 2920A which is an upgrade of our RF Vector Signal Generator line

for RF engineers with
capabilities

that reduce signal generation times and enhances
signal quality Additionally the Model 2920As operating mode

flexibility is suitable for MIMO device and system RD applications as well as in engineering education settings We also introduced Model 2820A

which adds enhanced measurement capabilities and support for the latest WSDMA standard Further we announced Model 2891-IQ Upconverter

which is used in wireless device testing and is compatible with Keithleys RF Signal Generators and Anal zers Applications for the Companys RF

test solutions included RD product development and production testing of growing range of wireless handsets modules and subassemblies

femtocells and picocells wireless chipsets and wireless infrastructure equipment

Geographic Markets and Distribution

During fiscal 2009 the majority of our products were manufactured in Ohio and acre sold in oser 80 countries throughout the world Our

principal markets are Asia Europe and the United States

In the United States our products are sold by our own sales personnel and through dii-ect marketing anti catalog mailings Outside the United

States we market our products directly in countries in which we have sales offices and through distributors or manufacturers representatnes in



Baker Hostetler

December 29 2009

VIA OVERNIGHT MAIL

SEC
Securities and Exchange Commission MJI Proçessn

450 Fifth Street N.W Secton

Judiciary Plaza ftL

Washington D.C 20549

Washington DC
Re Keithley Instruments Inc

Commission File No 1-9965

Annual Report to Shareholders

Ladies and Gentlemen

On behalf of Keithley Instruments Inc the Company and in accordance with

the requirements of Rule 4a-3c under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

enclosed solely for your information are seven paper copies of the Companys Annual Report to

Shareholders for the fiscal year ended September 30 2009 The Company expects to make the

Annual Report to Shareholders available on its website at www.keithley.com/Investors and begin

mailing the Annual Report to Shareholders along with its definitive proxy materials to its

shareholders on or about December 30 2009

Please acknowledge receipt of the enclosed materials by stamping the enclosed

receipt copy of this letter and returning it to the undersigned in the enclosed envelope

Please call the undersigned if you have any questions regarding this matter

Very truly yours

Janet Spreen

Enclosures

103114664.1



other countries We have subsidiary sales and service offices located in Great Britain Germany France the Netherlands Italy Japan Malaysia and

China We also have sales offices in Belgium Korea Taiwan India Singapore and Sweden

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

Our products require wide variety of electronic and mechanical components most of which are purchased We have multiple sources for the

vast majority of the components and materials we use howeve there are some instances in which the components are obtained from sole-

source supplier If we were unable to purchase components or materials from sole-source suppliei we could experience temporary adverse

impact on operations however we believe alternative sources could be found Although shortages of purchased materials and components have

been experienced from time to time these items have generally been available as needed

Patents

Electronic instruments of the nature we design develop and manufacture generally cannot be patented in their entirety Although we hold

patents with respect to certain of our products we do not believe our business is dependent to any material extent upon any single patent or

group of patents because of the rapid rate of technological change in the industry

Seasonal Trends and Working Capital Requirements

Our business is not subject to significant seasonal trends However many of the industries we serve including the semiconductor industry the

wireless communications industry and other sectors of the global electronics industry historically have been cyclical We generally maintain

adequate working capital to support our business and do not have
any unusual working capital requirements During fiscal 2009 many

of the

industries we serve experienced severe drop in sales due to global economic conditions Our sales to these customers also dropped significantly

and we operated at loss In
response we implemented series of cost cutting measures to reduce our losses and the amount of cash needed to

support our operations Throughout the year we maintained sufficient working capital levels

Customers

Our customers generally are involved in production test engineering research and development electronic service or repair and educational and

governmental research During the fiscal year ended September 30 2009 no one customer accounted for more than 10 percent of our sales We
do not believe that the loss of any one customer would materially affect our sales or net income

Backlog

Our backlog of unfilled orders amounted to approximately $12.2 million as of September 30 2009 and approximately $18.4 million as of September
30 2008 We expect that

substantially all of the orders included in the 2009 backlog will be delivered during fiscal 2010 portion of orders included

in backlog maybe canceled by the customer prior to shipment The level of backlog at any given time will be affected by the timing of our receipt of

orders the speed with which those orders are filled and our customers requested delivery schedules Accordingly our backlog as of September 30
2009 may not necessarily represent the actual amount of shipments or sales for

any
future period

Competition

The Company competes on the basis of quality performance service product availability and price with quality and performance frequently

being the most important There are many firms in the world engaged in the manufacture of electronic measurement instruments some of which

are larger and have greater financial resources than the Company In general the Company competes with number of companies in specialized

areas of the test and measurement industry and one large broad line measurement products supplie Agilent Technologies Inc

Research and Development

Our engineering development activities are directed toward the development of new products that will complement replace or add to the products

currently included in our product line We do not perform basic research but on an ongoing basis we utilize new component and software

technologies in the development of our products The highly technical nature of our products and the rapid rate of technological change in the

industry require large
and continuing commitment to engineering development efforts Product development expenses were $18.0 million in 2009

$25.5 million in 2008 and $25.9 million in 2007 or approximately 18% 17% and 18% of net sales respectively for each of the last three fiscal years

Government Regulations

We believe our current operations and uses of
property plant and equipment conform in all material respects to applicable laws and regulations

Keithley has not experienced nor do we anticipate any material claim or material
capital expenditure in connection with environmental laws and

other regulations

Employees

As of September 30 2009 the Company employed approximately 557 persons 191 of whom were located outside the United States None of our

employees are covered under the terms of collective bargaining agreement and we believe that relations with our employees are good

Foreign Operations and Export Sales

Information related to foreign and domestic operations and export sales is contained in Note of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements included in Item of this Form 10-K



During fiscal 2009 non-U.S sales accounted ftr more than 70 percent of our revenue There are several risks attendant to such foreign operations

These risks include increased exposure to the risk of foreign currency fluctuations and the potential economic and political impacts from

conducting business in foreign countries With the exception of changes in the value of foreign currencies which are not possible to predict we

believe our foreign subsidiaries antI other larger international markets are in countries where the economic and political climates generally are

stable The Company also must comply with foreign regulations which may increase the complexity of conducting its business

Executive Officers Of The Registrant

Certain information regarding our executive officers is set forth below

Name Position Age

Joseph Keithley Chairman of the Board of Directors President and Chief Executive Officer 60

Daniel Faia Vice President Sales anti Support
42

Mark Hoersten Vice President Marketing
51

Larry Pendergrass
Vice President New Product Development

MarkJ Plush Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 60

Linda Rae Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer 44

Joseph Keithley was elected Chairman of the Board of Directors in February 1991 He was elected Chief Executive Officer in November

1993 and President in May 1994 He has been Director since 1986 and was elected Vice Chairman of the Board in February 1988 Mr

Keithlev joined the Company in 1976 and held various positions in production customer service sales and marketing prior to being elected

Vice President of Marketing in 1986 From 1986 until his election to Chief Executive Officer in 1993 Mr Keithley held various management

positions within the Company He is director of Brush Engineered Materials Inc which in an integrated producer of high performance

specialty engineered materials used in variety of electrical electronic thermal and structural applications and Director of Nordson

Corporation worldwide producer of precision dispensing equipment and manufacturer of equipment used in the testing and inspection

of electronic components as well as technology-based systems for curing anti surface treatment processes

Daniel Faia joined the Company in February 2009 as Vice President Sales and Support
Prior to joining Keithley Mr Faia served as Vice

President/Worldwide Sales and Marketing at Eagle Test Systems with responsibility for managing global sales applications and customer

service efforts Prior to joining Eagle Test Mr Faia was employed by Teradyne Inc in various sales and product marketing positions from

March 1997 to April 2004

Mark Hoersten was elected Vice President Business Management in May 2003 and in September 2008 his role was expanded to Vice President

Marketing He joined the Company in June 1980 as Design Engineer and held various positions in product development and marketing before

becoming Vice President including Director of Marketing Telecommunications Test Business Managei and General Manager

Larry Pendergrass joined the Company in May 2003 as Vice President New Product Development Prior to joining Keithle Mr Pendergrass

bad over 20 years experience in research and development product development and manufacturing engineering in various roles including

Section Manager Project Manager anti Project Leader with Agilent Technologies and Hewlett-Packard

Mark Plush was elected Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in October 1998 Mr Plush joined the Company in March 1982 as

Controller and has been an officer of the Company since 1989

Linda Rae was elected Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer in December 2005 Ms Rae joined the Company in September

1995 as Product Marketer and has held various marketing positions
with the Company since then including Component Test Business

Manager from July 1999 to June 2000 Business Manager of Optoelectronics from June 2000 to April 2001 General Manager from April 2001

to May 2003 and Senior Vice President and General Manager from May 2003 to December 2005

Available Information

Our website address is http//wwwkeithleycom We make our annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on

Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed with or furnished to the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC available to the

public free of charge through our website as soon as reasonably practicable after making such filings
The public may read and copy any materials

we file with the SEC at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100 Street NE Washington DC 20549 The public may also obtain information on

the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 Additionally the SEC maintains an internet site http//www.sec

gov that contains reports proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

Current and potential shareholders should carefully
consider the risks and uncertainties described helo together with the information included

elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and other documents we file with the SEC The risks and uncertainties described below are those

that we have identified as material hut are not the only risks and uncertainties facing us Our business is subject to general risks and uncertainties

that affect many other companies such as overall U.S and non-U.S economic and industry conditions global economic slowdown geopolitical

events changes in laws or accounting rules terrorism or acts of war major health concerns natural disasters or other disruptions of expected

economic or business conditions Additional risks and uncertainties currently not known to us or that we currently believe are immaterial also

may impair our business



Cyclicality of the electronics industry and timing of the current economic downturn and large orders

Many of the industries we serve including but not limited to the semiconductoq wireless communications and precision electronic industries have

historically been very cyclical and have experienced periodic downturns Many of these industries are currently experiencing such downturn

which has been more severe and prolonged than those experienced in the past and which has also resulted in reduction in demand for equipment

including test and measurement equipment The current downturn has also tightened credit markets limiting our customers access to capital and

has caused them to reduce order levels Any of these conditions could impact our ability
to

effectively manage inventory levels create unabsorbed

costs due to lower net sales and ultimately result in further write downs of assets which would adversely affect our profitability

The factors leading to and the severity and length of downturn are difficult to predict and there can he no assurance that we will appropriately

anticipate changes in the underlying end markets we serve or that
any increased levels of business

activity
will continue as trend into the future

Our orders are cancelable by customers and consequently orders outstanding at the end of reporting period may not result in realized sales

in the future Orders from our top 25 customers during the quarter can generally vary between 20-40 percent of our total orders for any given

quarter This can cause our financial results to fluctuate from quarter to quartefi which may have an adverse impact on our stock price

Rapid technology changes

Our business strategy includes
significant investment in and expenditures for product development We sell our products in several industries

that are characterized by rapid and significant technological changes frequent new product introductions and enhancements and evolving

industry standards Without the timely introduction of new products our products will
likely become technologically obsolete overtime Our new

products may not gain market acceptance and
may not result in significant sources of revenue and earnings in the future In addition revenues

from our current products may not be sufficient to support development expenses
for new generations of our current products or expansions

of our product line If we are unable to make new product development investments or such investments do not result in future earnings our

operating results and stock price could be adversely affected

comp etitive factors

The Company competes on the basis of quality performance service product availability
and price with

quality and performance frequently being

the most important There are many
firms in the world engaged in the manufacture of electronic measurement instruments some of which are larger

and have greater financial resources than we do and/or have established significant reputations within the test and measurement industry and with

the customer base we serve If
any

of our competitors were to develop products or services that were more cost-effective or technically superior to

ours or if we were unable to differentiate our product offerings from those of our competitors demand for our products could slow Adtlitionally

aggressive competition could cause downward pricing pressure which would reduce our gross margins or cause us to lose market share

Dependence on key personnel

Our future success depends partly on the continued service of research engineering sales marketing manufacturing executive and administrative

personnel Competition for employees with the skills we require is strong in
any technology industry Due to the

significant reduction in customer

demand we experienced in the past twelve to eighteen months and may experience in future periods we have implemented workforce reductions

worldwide as well as reductions in compensation for significant portion of our domestic employee base We believe our pay levels remain

competitive howeveg there can be no assurance that we will be able to retain one or more key or other personnel Additionally there is competition

for personnel having certain highly technical specialties The loss of one or more key or other employees decrease in our ability to attract additional

qualified employees or delay in hiring key personnel could each have material adverse effect on our business

Dependence on key suppliers

Our products contain
large quantities of electronic components and subassemblies that in some cases are supplied through sole or limited source

third-party suppliers The current economic climate has increased the
possibility

that these suppliers could become insolvent or otherwise
go out of

business As result there can he no assurance that parts and supplies will be available in timely manner and at reasonable prices Additionally our

inventory is subject to risks of changes in market demand for particular products Our
inability to obtain critical

parts
and supplies or any resulting

excess and/or obsolete inventory could have an adverse impact on our results of operations

International operations political and economic conditions

We currently have subsidiaries or sales offices located in 16 countries outside the United States and international sales accounted for more than

70 percent of our revenue during fiscal 2009 Our international sales and operations are subject to significant risks and difficulties including

fluctuating foreign currency exchange rates trade protection measures domestic and foreign import or export licensing requirements

unexpected changes in legal and regulatory requirements compliance with customs regulations the credit risk financial condition of and

relationships with local customers and distributors and cultural differences in the conduct of business Any of these factors could have negative

impact on our revenue and operating results

Ejfrctive tax rates

We are subject to taxation and pay taxes in numerous countries and other
jurisdictions throughout the world Because of our operating losses in

2009 we recorded
significant valuation allowances against the majority of our deferred tax assets which resulted in

significant negative effect on our

effective tax rate and accordingly our results of operations Our future effective tax rate may be lower or higher than experienced in the past due to

numerous factors including change in the mix of
profitability

from country to country changes in accounting for income taxes and recently enacted

and future changes in tax laws in
jurisdictions

in which we operate Any of these factors could cause us to experience an effective tax rate
significantly

different than our current expectations which could have an adverse effect on our future results of operations



compliance with NYSE listing
standard

The Company previously announced that it was notified by the NYSE that it had fallen below continued listing criteria established by the NYSE

because the Companys total market capitalization bad been less than $75 million over consecutive 30 trading-day period while its last reported

shareholders equity was less than the exchanges $75 million requirement
The

listing requirements require that one of these two standards he met

The NYSE notified the Company that it had accepted the Companys proposed plan for continued listing on the NYSE subject to quarterly review

process by the NYSE Since that time the NYSE modified its continued listing requirements for minimum market capitalization and stockholders

equity to $50 million from $75 million on pilot program basis effective retroactively to May 12 2009 and continuing through February 29 2010

Currently the Companys reported shareholders equity is less than the exchanges $50 million requirement however our market capitalization

is above the requirement In addition to the requirement to maintain market capitalization or shareholders equity of at least $50 million under

other
listing requirements

if our average market capitalization over 30 trading-day period would fall below $15 million the NYSE would

be expected to start immediate delisting procedures If our stock price declines to the point where our compliance with the listing
standard

requiring market capitalization of at least $50 million is in jeopardy we would have 45 days from the receipt of notice from the NYSE to submit

plan to the NYSE to demonstrate our ability to achieve compliance with continued listing
standards within 18 months If the Company was unable

to maintain compliance with the NYSEs continued listing standards or the listing
standard does not become permanent the NYSE could begin

delisting procedures and our stuck could he delisted from trading on the NYSE As result we would need to find another exchange on which

our stock could he listed or our stock \vould cease to he traded on an active market which could result in reduction in the
liquidity

of our stock

and reduction in demand for our stock

Cost reduction initiatives

During fiscal 2009 we implemented series of cost reduction plans designed to streamline operations reduce expenses
eliminate unprofitable

product lines and improve efficiencies and effectiveness across our global organization We ma\ not be able to sustain such expense reductions

in subsequent periods and we could incur additional unforeseen expenses that may fully or partially offset our expected cost savings These

circumstances could cause our income to he lower than it otherwise would he and as result adversely affect our stock price

Changes in manuJdcturing processes
and capacity

We have implemented lean manufacturing environment in our sole manufacturing facility located in Solon Ohio We may not experience future

benefits from lean manufacturing if we are unable to continue to effectively fine-tune our operations and we could incur additional costs in the

future having negative impact on gross margin if new initiatives are needed to further improve manufacturing efficiencies Further because we

cannot immediately adapt our production capacities to rapidly changing market conditions when demand does not meet our expectations our

manufacturing capacity will
likely

exceed our production requirements Excess manufacturing capacity will result in unabsorhed or underabsorhed

fixed costs which wouldadversely affect our results of operations

Injbrinalion technology management systems

Our IT systems are critical to our normal business operations and we rely on them to provide adequate accurate and timely information for our order

entry billing manufacturing and other customer support functions Any failure in those systems could adversely affect our operating results We have

outsourced the hosting of these systems to third-party vendor If our third-party vendor experiences shut downs or other service-related issues

it could interrupt our normal business processes including our ability to process orders ship our products bill and service our customers and

otherwise run our business resulting in material adverse effect on our revenue and operating results

Fixed cost of sales jbrce

We have built our tlirect sales force throughout the world with our own employees rather than utilizing third-party sales representatives This

action increases our fixed costs and our results could he adversely affected during times of depressed sales

Impairment charges jbr definite-lived and long-lived assets

We are required to assess recoverability of the carrying value for property plant and equipment and other long-lived tangible assets whenever

there are indicators of impairment such as an adverse change in business climate An impairment charge would reduce our earnings and could

negatively affect our stock price

1-listorical stock option grant practices

We are subject to an SEC inquiry regarding our historical stock option practices the outcome of which we cannot predict It could result in

significant new expenses diversion of managements attention from our business commencement of formal simila administrative or litigation

actions against the Company or our current or former officers or directors significant
fines or penalties indemnity commitments to current and

former officers and directors and other material harm to our business The SEC also may disagree with the manner in which we have accounted

for and reported or not reported the financial impact of past option grants or other potential accounting errors and there is risk that its

inquiry could lead to circumstances in which we may
have to restate our prior financial statements amend prior SEC filings or otherwise take

actions not currently contemplated Any such circumstance also could lead to future delays in filing of subsequent SEC reports

ITEM UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None

ITEM PROPERTIES

The Companys principal administrative marketing manufacturing and development activities are conducted at Company-owned building

in Solon Ohio This building is approximately 125000 square feet and sits on approximately 26 acres of lantl lhe Company alsc leased space

in Santa Rosa California for its RF product development group however as of November 30 2009 that lease was assumed by Agilent with

the Company subject to its obligations if Agilent defaults in connection with the aforementioned sale of the Companys RF product line The



Company also owns two additional facilities both of which are located in Solon Ohio One facility adjacent to its executive offices is approximately

50000 square foot building on 5.5 acres of land is currently is being leased to others but is available for expansion should additional space be

required The other facility in Solon is approximately 75000 square feet and is not currently being used in operations and accordingly is available for

lease or sale Because the criteria under U.S GAAP were not met for held for sale treatment as of September 30 2009 this building is included in

Property plant and equipment on our Consolidated Balance Sheet Additionally we have number of sales and service offices in the United States

and overseas We believe the facilities owned and leased are well maintained adequately insured and suitable for their present and intended uses

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As previously disclosed in August 2006 the Companys Board of Directors formed Special Committee of independent directors to investigate

the Companys stock option practices since the beginning of the fiscal year ended September 30 1995 The Committee retained independent

counsel the Independent Counsel to assist it in the investigation Following appointment of the Special Committee the Company voluntarily

notified the staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission of the Special Committee investigation In September 2006 the Company received

notice that the SEC was conducting an inquiry into the Companys option grant practices

In December 2006 the Company announced the Special Committees findings which were adopted by the Board of Directors and were as

follows

There was no evidence of backdating annual stock option grants prior to the date of approval by the Board of Directors

There was multi-day delay by management in setting the exercise price for annual stock option grants in 2000 2001 and 2002 The delay

resulted in the options having lower exercise price than the price on the date of Board approval

Although the Special Committee determined that the terms of the Companys stock incentive plans required the options to be priced on

the date the Board approved them there was no finding of intentional misconduct on the part of senior management or any other Keithley

officer director or employee responsible for the administration of the Companys stock option grants

Based on evidence gathered and analyzed by the Independent Counsel the Special Committee found the dates selected by management for

the annual grants in 2000-2002 are the appropriate measurement dates for accounting purposes Accordingly the Company was not required

to record any compensation expense with respect to the annual option grants in 2000-2002 and the Company was not required to restate its

financial statements as result of these grants

The Special Committee concluded that the Companys public filings regarding annual options grants during the years reviewed were accurate

there is no evidence that the Company timed the grant date or pricing of annual stock option grants to take advantage of material non-public

information and there was no wrong doing or lack of oversight by the Companys independent directors or the Human Resources and

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors the Compensation Committee

The Special Committee also reviewed the Companys practices regarding stock option grants other than its annual grants which are

generally grants of smaller numbers of options to new hires and to existing employees for promotions The Special Committee concluded

that
management

exceeded certain of the authority granted to management by the Companys stock option plans and the Compensation

Committee but that these grants involved small numbers of shares and were largely the result of ministerial errors by management

On August 2006 and August 15 2006 the Company was named as nominal defendant in two separate shareholder derivative suits Nathan

Diamond Joseph Keithley et al Cuyahoga County Ohio Court of Common Pleas Diamond and Michael Miller Joseph Keithley et al

Cuyahoga County Ohio Court of Common Pleas Miller Both suits were removed to the United States District Court for the Northern District

of Ohio on September 2006 Miller and Diamond were consolidated and on November 13 2006 the
plaintiffs

filed consolidated Complaint the

Consolidated Complaint

On October 23 2006 and October 24 2006 the Company was named as nominal defendant in two additional shareholder derivative lawsuits

Edward Hardy Joseph Keithley et al in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio and Mike Marks Joseph Keithley

in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio

The four suits were consolidated in single action In re Keithley Instruments Inc Derivative Litigation in the United States District Court for

the Northern District of Ohio Pursuant to the consolidation order the Consolidated Complaint was the operative complaint in the action The

Consolidated Complaint alleged that various Company officers and/or directors manipulated the dates on which stock options were granted by the

Company so as to maximize the value of the stock options The suits alleged numerous claims including violations of Sections 10b lObS and

20a of the Exchange Act breaches of fiduciary duties aiding and abetting corporate waste unjust enrichment and rescission

The Company and other defendants filed motion to dismiss the Consolidated Complaint After extensive briefing and oral argument in March

2008 the Court granted the defendants motion to dismiss in its entirety The Court granted plaintiffs
leave to amend the Consolidated Complaint

within 30 days of the Courts Order In April 2008 plaintiffs
filed Second Amended Complaint The Second Amended Complaint did not include

the claims under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 contained in the Consolidated Complaint The Second Amended Complaint alleges state law

claims for unjust enrichment fraud breach of fiduciary duty aiding and abetting breach of fiduciary duty and conversion The Company and the

other defendants filed motion to dismiss the Second Amended Complaint and on January 20 2009 the Court granted the defendants motion to

dismiss in its entirety

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matter was submitted to vote of security holders during the fourth
quarter

of the fiscal
year

covered by this report

-8-



PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Companys Common Shares trade on the New York Stock Exchange the NYSE under the mhol KEI There is no established public

trading market for the Class Common Shares however they are readily convertible on one-for-one basis into Common Shares

The following table shows the high and low sales prices of the Companys Common Shares as reported on the NYSE and the amount of cash

dividends declared on the Companys Common Shares and Class Common Shares during the periods indicated

Cash Dividends

Cash Dividends Per Class

Fiscal 2009 High Low Per Common Share Common Share

First Quarter 8.64 2.02 .0375 .030

Second Quarter 3.91 1.86 .0375 .030

Third Quarter 4.59 2.76 .0125 .010

Fourth Quarter 6.41 3.47 .0125 .010

Fiscal 2008

Third Quarter 11.80

Fourth Quarter

The approximate number of shareholdeis of record of Common Shares and Class Common Shares including those shareholders participating

in the Dividend Reinvestment Plan as of December 2009 was 1908 and respectively

Equity Compensation Plan Information as of September 30 2009

Number of securities to be Weighted-average

issued upon exercise of exercise price of

outstanding options outstanding options

rights or warrants rights or warrants

Number of securities remaining

available for future issuance

under equity compensation

plans excluding securities

reflected in column

Equity compensation plans approved

by security holders 3531451 $18.72 1098446

Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders

Total 3531451 $18.72 1098446

Includes outstanding stock options to purchase 2934751 shares 153550 restricted award units and 443150 performance award units under

the Companys stock incentive plan that are payable in Common Shares The number of performance award units included above represents

the maximum number of units that may be earned pursuant to performance award units agreements See Note Restricted award units and

performance award units do not have an exercise price and therefore were not included for purposes of computing the weighted-average

exercise price Subsequent to September 30 2009 none of the 184400 performance award units associated with the 2007-2009 period were

issuetl as the vesting provisions were not attained Further the Company does not expect to issue any
of the remaining 258750 awards

associated with the 2008-2010 period as the vesting provisions are not expected to be met

Includes 457263 shares available for issuance under the 2005 Employee Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

On February 12 2007 the Company announced its Board of Directors had approved an open market stock repurchase program the 2007 Program

Under the terms of the 2007 Program the Company was permitted to purchase up to 2000000 Common Shares which represented approximately

12 percent of its total outstanding Common Shares at the start of the 2007 Program through February 28 2009 The Company did not replace the

2007 Prrgram upon its expiration As such the Company no longer has share repurchase program
in place Accordingly no shares were repurchased

during the third or fourth quarters of fiscal 2009 nor may any he repurchased by the Company at any time in the future

First Quarter

Second Quarter

11.53

11.86

8.71

8.46

9.15

7.9110.26

.0375

.0375

.0375

.0375

.030

.030

.030

.030

Plan category



Stock Performance Graph

The graph below compares the five year cumulative return from investing $100 on September 30 2004 in each of the Companys Common Shares

the Russell 2000 Index the Russell MicroCap and the Standard Poors Information Technology Index We included the Russell MicroCap this year as

we believe it is more comparable index given our current size and also because it is the index against which the
targets

of certain of our incentive

compensation programs are measured The comparison assumes that all dividends are reinvested

9/04 9/05 9/06 9/07 9/08 9/09

Keithley Instruments Inc 100.00

Russell MicroCap 100.00

SP Information Technology 100.00

84.46 74.60 62.78 50.36 34.42

117.95 129.66 145.65 124.56 112.67

116.99 125.21 137.33 106.42 97.98

113.45 117.14 144.47 110.70 120.10

COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Keithley Instruments Inc The Russell 2000 Index

The Russell MicroCap Index And The SP Information Technology Index
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following data has been derived from our consolidated financial statements Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30 2009 and 2008

and the related Consolidated Statements of Operations Cash Flows and Shareholders Equity for each of the three years in the period ended

September 30 2009 and notes thereto appear elsewhere in this Annual Report

For the years ended September 30

In thousands of dollars except for per share data 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Operating Results

Net sales 102527 152468 143658 155212 141552

Gross margin percentage 53.7% 58.9% 59.8% 61.3% 60.7%

Severance and related charges 6926 1377

J.oss income before income taxes 19366 4356 1.685 9913 14087

Provision benefit for income taxes 31138 1943 1336 1552 3959

Net loss income 50504 2593 349 8361 10128

Basic loss earnings per share 3.23 0.16 0.02 051 0.62

Diluted loss earnings per share 3.23 0.16 0.02 0.50 0.61

Common Stock Information

CashclividendsperCommonShare 0.100 0.150 0.150 0.150 0.150

Cash dividends per Class Common Share 0.080 0.120 0.120 0.120 0.120

Weighted average number of shares

outstanding- diluted 15648 15854 16207 16567 16591

At fiscal year-end

Dividend payout ratio n/m n/m n/m 30.0% 24.6%

Shareholders equity per share 2.14 6.12 6.76 7.03 6.81

Closing market price 5.54 8.37 10.60 12.75 14.60

Balance Sheet Data

Total assets 73102 137978 146406 148892 142364

Current ratio 2.9 3.3 3.8 4.2 4.2

Short-term debt 23 799 872

Long-term obligations 19382 12939 11102 9792 8240

Shareholders equity 36610 103302 113024 116503 111976

Total debt-to-capital 0.0% 0.0% 0.7% 0.7%

Other Data

Return on average
shareholders equity -72.2% -2.4% -0.3% 7.3% 9.5%

Return on average total assets -47.9% -1.8% -0.2% 5.7% 7.3%

Return on net sales -49.3% -1.7% -0.2% 5.4% 7.2%

Number of employees at year end 557 696 698 673 651

Sales per employee 163.7 218.7 209.6 234.5 220.7

Cash flow

Net cash used in provided by operating activities 5416 1706 5641 5985 10543

Ten-year compound annual growth rate

Net sales 0.2% 2.6% 1.5% 2.7% 2.6%

Net income n/m n/m n/m n/rn 7.5%

n/rn These ratios are not meaningful due to the reported net losses in fiscal 1996 2007 2008 and 2009

Included in
gross margins were $2540 of costs associated with the exit of product line Excluding those costs the gross margin percentage

for fiscal 2009 would have been 56.2%

Included in the provision for income taxes was valuation allowance against 11.5 deferred tax assets of $29967

ii



ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In Thousands of Dollars except for
per

share information

Introduction and Overview

This Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is intended to provide investors with an

understanding of the operating performance and financial condition of Keithley Instruments Inc discussion of our business including our

strategy for growth products and competition is included in Part of this Form 10-K

As discussed in more detail in Part of this Form 10-K on November 19 2009 the Company announced it entered into Purchase Agreement
to sell its RF product line the transaction closed on November 30 2009 The acquiring entity assumed related contractual product support and

other liabilities and hired the majority of the employees of the RF team and will continue to support the RF product line for our RF customers

References to the Companys RF product line contained herein refer to its historical relationship as part of the Companys operations unless

otherwise indicated

Business Overview

Our business is to design develop manufacture and market complex electronic instruments and systems geared to the specialized needs of

electronics manufacturers for high-performance production testing process monitoring product development and research Our primary
products are integrated systems used to source measure connect control or communicate electrical direct current DC radio frequency

RF or optical signals Our customers are engineers technicians and scientists in manufacturing product development and research functions

During fiscal 2009 approximately 20 percent of our orders were received from the semiconductor industry approximately five percent came
from the wireless communications customer group approximately 30 percent came from the precision electronics customer group which

includes customers in automotive computers and peripherals medical equipment aerospace and defense and manufacturers of components
and approximately 40 percent came from research and education customers The remainder of orders came from customers in variety of other

industries Although our products vary in capability sophistication use size and price they generally test measure and analyze electrical RF

optical or physical properties As such we consider our business to be in single industry segment

The most important factors influencing our ability to grow revenue are our customers spending patterns as they invest in new capacity or

upgrade manufacturing lines for new product offerings ii our ability to offer interrelated products with differentiated value that solve our

customers most compelling test challenges and iii our success in penetrating key accounts with our globally deployed sales and service

team We continue to believe that our strategy of pursuing focused set of applications will allow us to grow faster than the overall test and

measurement industry

Many of the industries we serve including but not limited to the semiconductor industry the wireless communications industry and precision

electronics have
historically been very cyclical

and have experienced periodic downturns Our customers across all industries and geographic

regions demonstrated reduced order patterns during the latter part of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 This pattern deepened during the first

quarter of fiscal 2009 and continued into the second quarter of fiscal 2009 as series of bank and insurance company failures triggered financial

crisis that
effectively

halted global credit markets and required unprecedented government intervention While our customers
capital spending

remains at greatly reduced levels we did experience sequential increases in customer orders the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2009 from

their low in March 2009

In response to the decline in orders we experienced we began implementing cost-cutting measures in September 2008 and continued this

process throughout fiscal 2009 Those actions included worldwide workforce reductions of approximately 20 percent salary reductions for

certain exempt personnel unpaid time off for nonexempt personnel hiring freezes suspension of matching 401k contributions exiting the

S600 parametric test product line curtailment of other discretionary spending and the sale of our RF business in November 2009 We also

deferred spending in fiscal 2009 on certain new product development efforts while remaining committed to the successful launch of other new

products that we have in development The cost saving measures were designed to increase our efficiency refine our competitive focus and

position the Company for
profitability as demand stabilizes

Our focus during the past several years has continued to center on building long-term relationships and strong collaborative partnerships with

our global customers to serve their measurement needs Toward that end we rely primarily upon employing our own sales personnel to sell our

products and use sales representatives to whom we pay commission in areas where we believe it is not cost-beneficial to employ our own

people This sales channel strategy allows us to build sales network of focused highly trained sales engineers who specialize in measurement

expertise and problem-solving for customers and enhances our ability to sell our products to customers with worldwide operations We believe

our ability ro serve our customers has been strongly enhanced by deploying our own employees throughout the United States Europe and Asia

We expect that
selling through our own sales force will be favorable to earnings during times of strong sales and unfavorable during times of

depressed sales given that substantial portion of our selling costs are fixed

We continue to believe that both the semiconductor and wireless areas drive change within the electronics industry These technology changes
create many opportunities for us and we continued the introduction of new products and enhancements during fiscal 2009 despite the challenging

economic conditions Our research and education customers work involves advanced materials research in areas including nanotechnology

organic materials and thin film research These materials are ultimately used in the next generation of semiconductors and cutting-edge electronic

devices Additionally our semiconductor customers include large integrated device manufacturers and foundries fabless manufacturers as well

as solar cell developers We believe these customers will continue to invest because they continually are improving existing devices or developing

new devices that in turn create new measurement requirements
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management has identified the Companys critical accounting policies These policies have the potential to have more significant impact on

oor financial statements either hecaose of the significance of the financial statement item to which they relate or hecaose they reqoire jodgment

and estimation doe to the oncertainty involved in measoring at specific point in time events which will be settled in the fotore

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accoonting principles generally accepted in the United States of America U.S GAAP

reqoires management to make estimates and assomptions that affect the reported amoonts of assets and liahilities and disclosure of contingent

assets and liahilities at the date of the reported financial statements and the reported am000ts of reveooes and expenses doring the reporting

period Actual results could differ materially from those estimates

Revenue recognition

Keithley Instruments Inc recognizes product revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists delivery has occurred the sales

price is fixed or determinahle and collectahility
is reasooahly assured Delivery is considered to have heen met when title and risk of loss have

transferred to the customer Upon shipment provision is made for estimated costs that may
be incurred for product warranties and sales

returns Revenue earned from service contracts is recognized ratably over the contractual service periods and is not material to the Companys

consolidated results Shipping and handling costs are recorded as Cost of goods sold in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market Cost is determined hased on currently-adjusted standard which approximates actual cost

on first-in first-out basis We periodically review our recorded inventory and estimate reserve for obsolete or slow-moving items If actual

demand and market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management additional reserves may be required If actual market

conditions are more favorable than anticipated our cost of sales will he lower than expected in that period

Income taxes

Keithley is subject to taxation from federal state and international jurisdictions The annual provision fur income taxes and the determination of

the resulting deferred tax assets and liabilities involves significant amount of judgment by management Judgment also is applied in determining

whether the deferred tax assets will be realized in full or in part In evaluating our ability to recover our net deferred tax assets which totaled

$1051 at September 30 2009 we considered all available positive and negative evidence including our past operating results the existence

of cumulative losses in the must recent fiscal years
and our forecast of future taxable income In determining future taxable income we are

responsible fur assumptions
utilized including the amount of pretax operating income in each tax jurisdiction the reversal of book versus tax

differences and the implementation of feasible and prudent tax planniog strategies These assumptions require significant judgment about the

forecasts of future taxable income and are consistent with plans and estimates we are using to manage the underlying business

We have established valuation allowance against deferred tax assets in the United States and in certain foreign jurisdictions which may not he

realized due to the uncertainty of future
profit

levels in the respective jurisdictions We intend to maintain this valuation allowance until sufficient

positive
evidence exists to support reversal of the valuation allosvance until such NOLs are utilized or until such NOLs expire Our income tax

expense
recorded in the future will be reduced to the extent of offsetting decreases in our valuation allowance The realization of certain tax

credits and the remaining deferred tax asset is dependent upon achieving future forecasted taxable income If actual results are significantly

less than our forecast an additional valuation allowance may be recorded against the remaining net deferred tax assets which totaled $1051

at September 30 2009 An increase in the valuation allowance would result in additional income tax expense in such period and could have

material impact on our future earnings and financial position In addition the calculation of our tax liabilities involves dealing with certain

uncertainties in the application of complex tax regulations in various tax jurisdictions We recognize potential liabilities for anticipated tax issues

based
upon our estimate of whether additional taxes \vill be due If payment of these amounts ultimately proves to be unnecessary the reversal

of the liabilities would result in tax benefits being recognized in the period when we determine that the liabilities are no longer necessary If our

estimate of tax liabilities proves to be less than the ultimate assessment further charge of income tax expense
would result

Pension plans

Our retirement benefit plans are significant
cost of doing business and their related obligations will inherently be settled far in future periods

Therefore the ultimate amount of those obligations is subject to estimation Pension accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of future

benefit costs over the employees approximate service period based on the terms of the plans and the investment and funding decisions made

by us We are required to make assumptions regarding such variables as the expected long-term rate of return on assets and the discount rate

applied to determine service cost and interest cost to arrive at pension income or expense for the year Because the assumption regarding

the rate of return on plan assets is long-term estimate it can differ materially from the actual return realized on plan assets in any given year

particularly when markets are highly volatile We have analyzed the rates of return on assets used and determined that the rates we use are

reasonable based on the plans historical performance relative to the overall markets in the countries where the plans are in place as well as the

plans asset allocation between equities and fixed income investments Assumed discount rates are used in measurements of the projected and

accumulated benefit obligations and the service and interest cost components
of net periodic pensioo cost See Note to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for further detail

The discount rate for the United States plan \vas determined as of the September 30 2009 measurement date by constructing portfolio of

bonds with cash flows from coupon payments and maturities matching the projected benefit payments under the Plan Bonds considered in

constructing the model portfolio are rated AA- or higher by Standard Poors Callable bonds were excluded from consideration in this analysis

The longest matum-ity of any bond included in the data is August 15 2037 Benefit payments beyond 2037 were discounted back to this year using

interest rates taken from the Citigroup Pension Discount Curve Comparison to Above Median as of September 30 2009 The matching bond



portfolio produces coupon income in excess of what is needed to meet early period benefit payments The excess coupon income is accumulated

as interest based on the Citigroup Pension Discount Curve Comparison to Above Median as of September 30 2009 until such time as it is used

to pay benefits

The discount rates used in determining the recorded liability as of year end for our United States pension plan were 6.0% for 2009 7.0% for 2008

and 6.375% for 2007 The 100 basis point decrease from 2008 to 2009 reflects the decline in interest rates stemming from the global economic

crisis that began in late fiscal 2008 this situation pushed bond yields lower than previous levels The increase in the rate from 2007 to 2008 was

primarily due to higher interest rates on long-term highly rated corporate bonds The discount rates for our German pension plan were 6.5%

for 2009 6.25% for 2008 and 5.5% for 2007 The
slight increases in this rate reflects the change in spread between government and highly-rated

Corporate bond yields for Euro instruments having durations similar to the German pension liability

Actual rate of loss return on United States plan assets was 5.8% for 2009 compared to an expected rate of return of 8.0% 0.25% increase

decrease in the expected rate of return would have produced $113 decrease increase in 2009 expense

The pension plan assets in Germany are invested through an insurance company The insurance company directs the investments for this

insurance contract Because of the type of investments in the insurance contract an expected rate of return of 5.0% was assumed

Management will continue to assess the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets and discount rate assumptions for both the United States

plan and the non-U.S plans based on relevant market conditions as prescribed by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

and will make adjustments to the assumptions as appropriate Pension income or expense is allocated to Cost of goods sold Selling general and

administrative expenses and Product development expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations

Stock compensation plans

In accordance with U.S GAAP the Company is required to record the fair value of stock-based compensation awards as an expense In order to

determine the fair value of stock options on the date of grant the Company applies the Black-Scholes option-pricing model Inherent in this

model are assumptions related to expected stock-price volatility option life risk-free interest rate and dividend yield While risk-free interest rate

and dividend yield are less subjective assumptions typically
based on factual data derived from public sources the expected stock-price volatility

and option life assumptions require greater level of judgment which makes them critical accounting estimates We use an expected stock-price

volatility assumption primarily based upon observed historical
volatility

of Keithleys stock price as there is not substantial enough market

for exchange-traded options During fiscal
year 2009 we used stock-price volatility assumption of 49% With regard to the weighted-average

expected option life assumption we consider several factors including the historical option exercise behavior of our employees historical

cancellation rates of past options and the current life of options outstanding and vested During fiscal year 2009 we used an expected life

assumption of 4.75 years We also are required to estimate an expected forfeiture rate when recognizing compensation cost We review this rate

during each reporting period and adjust it when necessary based upon our past history of actual forfeitures The total estimated unrecognized

compensation at September 30 2009 was $948 and is expected to be recognized over weighted average period of 2.3 years

We currently grant non-cash compensation in the form of non-qualified stock options performance share units and restricted share units The

final number of common shares to be issued pursuant to the performance share unit awards will be determined at the end of each three-year

performance period The awards granted in fiscal year 2008 can be adjusted in 25 percent increments and may range from maximum of twice

the initial award as specified in the agreement to minimum of zero units depending upon the level of attainment of performance thresholds

During fiscal 2009 we reversed previously-recorded expenses of $950 relating to the 2007-2009 and 2008-2010 periods as performance attainment

thresholds were either not achieved or were no longer expected to be achieved We granted no performance share awards during fiscal 2009 Our

future earnings can fluctuate throughout the performance period specified in the agreements depending upon our estimate of the number of

awards we expect will be issued upon the completion of the performance period

Restructuring and Cost Reduction Programs

We expense costs associated with exit and disposal activities designed to restructure operations and reduce ongoing costs of operations when

we incur the related liabilities or when other triggering events occur After the appropriate level of
management having the authority approves

the detailed cost reduction or restructuring plan we establish accruals for underlying activities by estimating employee termination costs Our

estimates are based upon factors including affected employees length of service any statutory requirements contract provisions salary level

and health care benefit choices As part of our assessment of exit and disposal activities we also analyze the carrying value of any affected long

lived assets for impairment and reductions in the estimated useful lives We believe our estimates and assumptions used to calculate the costs

associated with these restructuring provisions are appropriate and although we do not anticipate significant changes actual costs could differ

from the estimates should we make changes to the nature or timing of the plans

Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements and Supplementary Data included in Item of this Annual Report



Percent of net sales for the years ended Septemher 30

2009 2008 2007

Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Cost of goods sold 43.8 41.1 40.2

Inventory write off and accelerated depreciation for exit of product line 2.5 00 0.0

Gross
profit

53.7 58.9 59.8

Selling general and administrative expenses 48.4 43.6 44.5

Product development expenses 17.6 16.7 18.0

Severance and related charges 6.8 0.9 0.0

Operating loss 19.1 2.3 2.7

Investment income 0.3 1.0 1.5

Interest expense 0.1 0.0 0.0

Impairment of long-term investments 0.0 1.7 0.0

Loss before income taxes 18.9 3.0 1.2

Provision benefit for income taxes 30.4 1.3 1.0

Net loss 49.3% i.7% 0.2%

We recorded net losses of $50504 or $3.23 per diluted share for fiscal 2009 $2593 or $0.16 per diluted share for fiscal 2008 and $349 or $0.02

per diluted share for fiscal 2007

Net sales were $102527 in 2009 compared with $152468 in 2008 and $143658 in 2007 The 33 percent decline in sales in 2009 was substantially

driven by the weak worldwide economic conditions that began during the latter part of fiscal 2008 intensified considerably in the first quarter

of 2009 as the U.S financial markets froze and persisted throughout the duration of fiscal 2009 as global markets reacted and responded Our

customers responded with reduced demand for products in all industries and all geographic regions served On relative basis demand in

fiscal 2009 for products used in research and development declined from fiscal 2008 levels less significantly than demand for products used

in production for our customers in each of the semiconductor wireless and precision electronics industries As such orders for research and

development application mitigated what could otherwise have been more significant
overall reduction in sales between fiscal 2008 and 2009

Geographically fiscal 2009 sales declined 29 percent
in the Americas 34 percent in Asia and likewise fell 35 percent in Europe all as compared to

our respective 2008 results For fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 sales were up percent in the Americas percent in Asia and percent in

Europe The stronger U.S dollar negatively affected sales by two percentage points in fiscal 2009 and one percentage point in fiscal 2007 while

weaker dollar resulted in sales growth by four percentage points in fiscal 2008

Cost of goods sold as percentage of net sales was 43.8% 411% and 40.2% in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively The increase in costs as

percentage of sales in 2009 was driven by the lower sales volumes that were not fully
offset by the various cost cutting measures discussed earlier

under Business Overview whereas the increase in 2008 over 2007 levels was primarily the result of an increase in excess and obsolete inventory

reserves and increased
freight costs During 2009 we exited our S600 product line and as result recorded $2540 of charges for inventory write

offs and accelerated depreciation on related production equipment Foreign exchange hedging had minimal effect on Cost of goods sold in

2009 2008 and 2007

Selling general and administrative expenses of $49764 declined $16649 or 25% in 2009 as compared to 2008 levels and increased less than

4% in 2008 from $64008 in 2007 The sharp decline in 2009 was principally attributable to worldwide headcount reductions and other concerted

cost-containment measures which began in September 2008 and continued throughout the entirety of fiscal 2009 Additionally we recorded

reversals of $950 during fiscal 2009 for previously-accrued performance-based stock awards that either did not vest during fiscal 2009 or were

no longer expected to vest due to the
poor

financial performance The increase in 2008 over 2007 was the result primarily of increased foreign

exchange costs as result of the 10% weaker U.S dollar higher commissions and sales incentives higher salary costs and increased consultant

costs These costs were partially offset by the absence of costs associated with the stock option investigation and shareholder litigation
that were

included in 2007

Product development expenses of $18024 in 2009 decreased 29% from $25504 in 2008 and increased 1% in 2008 from $25863 in 2007 The

decline from 2008 to 2009 was attributable to targeted reductions in spending coupled with headcount reductions in
response to lower customer

demand as well as the aforementioned exit of the 8600 product line Product development expense
in 2008 was approximately one percent lower

than 2007 levels

During 2009 we recorded expenses of $6926 for costs associated with severance and related charges compared to expenses of $1377 in 2008 for

costs associated with the first reduction in our global workforce We did not incur such costs during 2007 See Note for further discussion

Investment income was $303 in 2009 $1603 in 2008 and $2307 in 2007 The 2009 reduction from 2008 levels was driven mostly by lower average

cash and investment levels coupled with more conservative investment portfolio comprised principally of certificates of deposits and money

market funds The decrease in 2008 was the result of lower average cash and investment balances change in investment types and lower

average interest rates Higher interest rates accounted for the higher income in 2007 See Note for further details Interest expense was $52 in

2009 $70 in 2007 and $55 in 2006
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During 2008 we recorded impairment losses on our long-term investments totaling $2620 The impairment losses included $1500 representing

valuation allowance against note receivable from company as well as $1100 due to impairment of our investment in company that is carded

on cost basis We recorded no impaitment losses during 2009 or 2007 See Note for further discussion

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2009 including discrete items was 161% and was substantially driven by valuation allowance of $29967 recorded

in the first quarter against U.S deferred tax assets as well as $6307 of tax expense on U.S loss without tax benefit We also recorded tax expense
on certain profitable foreign jurisdictions See Note for further discussion

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2008 including discrete items was benefit of 42.8% compared to benefit of 79.3% for 2007 The effective

benefit in 2008 was greater than the U.S statutory rate due to the recognition of current year research tax credits state and local tax benefits

and the recognition of benefits associated with prior year adjustments These benefits were partially
offset by the net impact of losses in foreign

jurisdiction which are not available for tax benefit and U.S tax on foreign remittances See NoteJ for further discussion

The effective benefit for 2007 was greater than the U.S statutory rate due to the current year utilization of research tax credits and an $882

benefit for the retroactive application of research tax credits for fiscal 2006 These benefits were partially
offset by the net U.S tax on foreign

remittances effective tax rates in foreign jurisdictions that are higher than the U.S statutory tax rate and the net impact of other permanent
differences See Note for further discussion

Dur financial results are affected by foreign exchange rate fluctuations Generally weakening U.S dollar versus foreign currency favorably

impacts our foreign currency denominated sales strengthening U.S dollar has an unfavorable effect This foreign exchange effect cannot be

precisely isolated since many other factors affect our foreign sales and earnings These factors include product offerings and pricing policies of

Keithley and our competition whether competition is foreign or U.S based changes in technology product and customer mix and local and

worldwide economic conditions

We utilize hedging techniques designed to mitigate the short-term effect of exchange rate fluctuations on operations and balance sheet positions

by entedng into foreign exchange forward contracts We do not speculate in foreign currencies or derivative financial instruments and hedging

techniques do not increase our exposure to foreign exchange rate fluctuations

Financial Condition Liquidity and Capital Resources

Working Capital

The following table summarizes working capital as of September30

2009 2008

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 24114 22073

Restricted cash 569

Short-term investments 759 5700

Refundable income taxes 466 230

Accounts receivable and other net 11738 17035

Total inventodes 9937 19823

Deferred income taxes 303 5483

Dther current assets 1753 2079

Total current assets 49639 72423

Current liabilities

Short-term debt
23

Accounts payable 4916 7325

Accrued payroll and related expenses 5648 7073

Drher accrued expenses 5424 6142

Income taxes payable 1122 1174

Total current liabilities 17110 21737

Working capital 32529 50686

Working capital decreased during fiscal year 2009 by $18157 substantially driven by $22784 reduction in current assets from September30 2008

The decrease in current assets was caused by the combined effect of $4941 less short-term investments as those were liquidated into cash to fund

operating needs during 2009 $5527 of lower accounts receivable resulting from lower customer orders $9886 of reduced inventodes due to

concerted inventory management efforts and the exiting of the 8600 product line and $5180 fewer deferred current tax assets resulting from the

aforementioned valuation allowance recorded in the 2009 Current liabilities declined from 2008 to 2009 by $4627 The lower levels in all current

liabilities resulted from the measures implemented throughout 2009 to lower our cost structure including the reduction in inventory levels and was

partially offset by $748 of higher severance accruals at the end of fiscal 2009 compared to those recorded at the end of fiscal 2008
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Sources and Uses of cash

The following table is summary of our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

2009 2008 2007

Cash provided by used in

Operating activities 5416 $1706 $5641

Investing activities 9178 16031 525

Financing activities 2029 8844 3152

Operating activities Cash used in operating activities was $5416 compared to cash provided by operations of $1706 for fiscal years 2009 and 2008

respectively Cash from operating activities is net income adjusted for certain non-cash
expenses

and changes in assets and liabilities During fiscal

2009 the net use of cash in operating activities stemmed primarily from the net loss which was not fully offset by non-cash charges and reductions

in working capital We also made $750 of voluntary contributions to our U.S pension plan During fiscal
year 2008 operating cash flows resulted

primarily from decrease in accounts receivable and the positive impact of non-cash charges from depreciation stock-based compensation and

assets impairment charges This was partially
offset by non-cash charges for deferred taxes an increase in inventory and $1500 in contributions to

the Companys U.S pension plan in fiscal 2008 See Note for further details During fiscal 2007 operating cash flo\vs of $5641 resulted primarily

from decrease in accounts receivable and the positive effect of non-cash charges for depreciation and stock-based compensation This was

partially
offset by non-cash charges for deferred income taxes and $2500 in contributions to the Companys U.S pension plan

Investing activities Cash provided by investing activities was $9178 in fiscal year 2009 compared to $16031 in fiscal year 2008 Cash flows from

investing activities consist primarily of the purchase and sale of investments and purchases of property plant and equipment Capital spending

declined to $1994 in 2009 from $3831 in 2008 as we curtailed spending in response to the difficult economic conditions experienced throughout

the year We purchased $759 of short-term investments in 2009 versus $13225 last year while sales of short-term investments generated $12500 in

cash in fiscal 2009 versus $33087 last year As iesult during fiscal 2009 we liquidated approximately $11741 to provide cash for operations and

other activities compared to $19862 last year The tleclines in these investment activities directly
relate to the lower financial performance in 2009

compared to 2008 Additionally in 2009 we used $569 in connection with pledges against outstanding letters of credit as required under our new

credit arrangement which was the result of the amendment of our existing
credit arrangement effective March 30 2009 See Note for details

Cash provided by investing activities was $16031 in fiscal year 2008 compared to cash used in investing activities of $525 in fiscal year 2007 Capital

spending was $3831 in 2008 versus $4511 in 2007 We purchased $13225 of short-term investments in 2008 versus $32927 in 2007 while sales

of short-term investments generated $33087 in cash in 2008 compared to $36913 in 2007 Short-term investments totaled $5700 at September

30 2008 as compared to $36340 as of September 30 2007 During 2008 we converted $14125 of auction rate securities to cash Additionally the

decrease in short-term investments in fiscal 2008 was the result of the Companys strategic
initiative in accordance with its investment policy to

maintain the safety and liquidity
of its cash and investments

Financing activities Cash used for financing activities in 2009 was $2029 versus $8844 in 2008 During fiscal year 2009 we repurchased $787 of

our Common Shares compared to $6163 in 2008 See Note for further details Additionally we repaid $861 in short-term tlebt during fiscal year

2008 and $25 in fiscal 2009 Short-term debt was $0 at September 30 2009 and $23 at September 30 2008 Cash dividends in 2009 were $1521

compared with $2307 in 2008 The decline in cash dividends was driven by the tlecision to conserve cash in order to maintain liquidity given the

low levels of customer demand experienced throughout fiscal 2009

The Company amended its credit agreement
in March 2009 The revised facility consists of $5000 debt facility $0 outstanding at September

30 2009 that provides unsecured multi-currency revolving credit at various interest rates based on Prime or LIBOR The agreement fl longer

contains debt covenants hut instead requires cash to be pledged against outstanding borrowings and outstanding letters of credit We are

required to pay facility
fee of 0.25% on the total amount of the commitment The expiration date of March 31 2011 remains unchanged

Additionally per the terms of the agreement the Company may borrow up to $5000 from other lenders The Company has number of other

such credit facilities in various currencies and for standby letters of credit aggregating $1585 $0 outstanding as September 30 2009

At September 30 2009 we bad total unused lines of credit with domestic and foreign banks aggregating $6016 See Note for further details

Untler certain provisions of the former debt agreement we were required to comply with various financial ratios and covenants

Our stock repurchase program expired on February 28 2009 and was not renewed or replaced Accordingly we may repurchase no further

Common Shares See Note for more details

During 2010 we expect to finance capital spending and working capital requirements with cash and short-term investments on hand cash

provided by operations as well as the net proceeds from the sale of our RF product line Capital expenditures in fiscal 2010 are expected to

approximate $1500 to $2000

Set forth below is table of information with respect to the Companys contractual obligations as of September 30 2009

Contractual Obligations Payments Due by Period

Total Less than year 1-3 years 3-5 years
More than years

Short-Term Debt
11

Operating Lease Obligations 5788 2170 2570 551 497

Payments Under Deferred

Compensation Agreements 2378 317 345 155 1561

Pension Benefits

-cancelahle
Purchase Commitments 127 127

Total Contractual Obligations 8293 2614 2915 706 2058
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Includes $305 and $483 for amounts due in less than one year and in one to three years respectively for the Santa Rosa lease associated

with the RF product line that was sold in November 2009 see details in Note While Agilent assumed the Santa Rosa lease the Company
remains guarantor in the event of default Agilent will indemnify the Company for any amounts paid by the Company to the landlord in

event of any default Accordingly obligations of approximately $254 $305 and $178 under that lease and included in the above table are not

expected to be incurred by the Company for fiscal 2010 2011 and 2012 respectively

Includes amounts due under deferred compensation agreements with current and former employees and Director At September 30

2009 investment in insurance assets to fund future deferred compensation payments were $1756 Amounts exclude additional interest and

investment gains or losses that may be earned or incurred from September 30 2009 through the time of payment

The obligation related to pension benefits is actuarially determined and is reflective of obligations as of September 30 2009 The Company
made voluntary pension contribution of $750 in fiscal 2009 and does not have required contribution due in fiscal 2010 We anticipate

making voluntary contributions ranging from $750 to $1500 in fiscal 2010 We are not able to reasonably estimate our future required

contributions beyond 2010 due to uncertainties regarding significant assumptions involved in estimating future required contributions to

our defined benefit pension plans including interest rate levels the amount and timing of asset returns what if

any changes may occur in

legislation and how contributions in excess of the minimum requirements could impact the amounts and timing of future contributions

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company has no off-balance sheet arrangements

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued the Accounting Standards Codification ASC to serve as the single

source of authoritative U.S GAAP The ASC supersedes all the existing non-SEC accounting and reporting standards upon its effective date and

subsequently the FASB will not issue new standards in the form of Statements Staff Positions or Emerging Issues Task Force Abstracts The

guidance is not intended to change or alter existing U.S GAAP The guidance became effective for the Company in the fourth quarter of fiscal

2009 Adoption did not have an impact on its consolidated results of operations financial position or cash flows

In May 2009 the FASB issued authoritative guidance which establishes general standards for accounting and disclosure of events occurring

subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to issuance of the financial statements The guidance is not intended to result in
significant change

to current practice The Company adopted the guidance in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 Adoption did not have an effect on its consolidated

results of operations financial position or cash flows

In April 2009 the FASB issued authoritative guidance for disclosures about derivative instruments and hedging activities The guidance is intended

to improve financial reporting about derivative instruments and hedging activities by requiring enhanced disclosures to enable investors to better

understand their effects on an entitys results of operations The Company adopted the guidance in the third quarter of fiscal 2009 Adoption did

not have an effect on its consolidated results of operations financial position or cash flows

In March 2008 the FASB issued updates to guidance amending and expanding the disclosure requirements related to the use of derivative

instruments and hedging activities to provide improved transparency into the uses and financial statement impact of derivative instruments

and hedging activities The new disclosure provisions were adopted by the Company in the second quarter of fiscal 2009 See Note to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for the required disclosures related to derivative instruments and hedging activities

In September 2006 the FASB issued guidance that requires that employers recognize the funded status of defined benefit pension and other

postretirement benefit plans as net asset or liability on the balance sheet and recognize as component of other comprehensive income net

of tax the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that arise during the period but are not recognized as component of net periodic

benefit cost Companies are required to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of their fiscal
year end The Company adopted the

presentation requirements of the guidance in fiscal 2007 which resulted in net charge to other comprehensive income of $1975 We adopted

the measurement date provisions in 2009 and as result recorded charge of $105 to retained earnings See Note to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for additional information related to the change in measurement date provisions

In September 2006 the FASB issued authoritative guidance which established framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted

accounting principles and expanded disclosures about fair value measurements The guidance is applicable to other accounting pronouncements

that require or permit fair value measurements Accordingly the guidance did not require any new fair value measurements Howevei for some

entities the application changed current practice The guidance became effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after

November 15 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal
years However the FASB provided one-year deferral for the implementation for

nonfinancial assets and liabilities The Company adopted the guidance effective October 2008 except with respect to nonfinancial assets and

liabilities and the adoption did not have material impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements

In February 2007 the FASB issued guidance which allows companies to choose at specified election dates to measure eligible financial assets

and liabilities at fair value that are not otherwise required to be measured at fair value Unrealized gains and losses shall be reported on items for

which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date The guidance was effective for fiscal years beginning

after November 15 2007 The Company adopted the guidance effective October 2008 and the adoption did not have material impact on its

Consolidated Financial Statements
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009 the FASB issued updates to guidance that address accounting for variable interest entities These updates to ASC 810 are effective for

the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2011 The Company is currently assessing the impact that adoption will have on its consolidated results of

operations financial position or cash flows

In December 2008 the FASB issued updates to the guidance which is intended to enhance disclosures regarding assets in defined benefit pension

or other postretirement plans The updates are effective for the Company in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 The Company does not anticipate the

adoption to have material effect on its Consolidated Financial Statements

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company is exposed to variety of risks including foreign currency fluctuations interest rate fluctuations and changes in the market value of its

short-term investments In the normal course of business we employ established
policies

anti procedures to manage our exposure to fluctuations

in foreign currency values and interest rates

The Company is exposed to foireign currency exchange rate risk primarily through transactions denominated in foreign currencies We currently

utilize foreign exchange forward contracts or option contracts to sell foreign currencies to fix the exchange rates related to near-term sales and

effectively
fix our margins Generally these contracts have maturities of three months or less Our policy is to only enter into derivative transactions

when we have an identifiable exposure to risk thus not creating additional foreign currency exchange rate risk In our opinion 10 percent adverse

change in foreign currency exchange rates would not have material effect on these instruments nor therefore on our results of operations

financial position or cash flows

The Company maintains short-term and long-term investment portfolio consisting primarily of various certificates of deposit CD5 with numerous

institutions and having differing maturity dates decline in interest rates would generally not change the value of these investments as they mature

hut would decrease earnings on future CDs purchased with cash or proceeds from other matured CDs During fiscal 2009 the amount of short-term

investments has declined substantially in terms of both dollars and as percentage of total current assets Accordingly in managements opinion

10 percent decline in interest rates would not have material impact on our consolidated results of operations financial position or cash flows

1.9



ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Keithley Instruments Inc

In our opinion the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations shareholders equity and

cash flows present fairly in all material respects the financial position of Keithley Instruments Inc and its subsidiaries at September 30 2009 and

2008 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30 2009 in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects

effective internal control over financial reporting as of September 30 2009 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys management is responsible for these

financial statements for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control

over financial reporting included in managements report on internal control over financial reporting included in Item 9A Our responsibility is to

express opinions on these financial statements and on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits We

conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require

that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and

whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audits of the financial statements included

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over

financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness

exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also included

performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in

reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company ii provide reasonable assurance that

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company and iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that

the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Cleveland Ohio

December 11 2009
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the years ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 In Thousands of Dollars Except for Per Share Data

2008

152468

62623

2009 2007

143658

57724

Net sales 102527

Cost of goods sold 44890

Inventory writedowns and accelerated depreciation for

exit of product line 2540

Gross profit 55097 89845 85934

Selling general and administrative expenses 49764 66413 64008

Product development expenses 18024 25504 25863

Severance and related charges 6926 1377

Operating loss 19617 3449 3937

Investment income 303 1603 2307

Interest expense 52 70 55

Impairment of long-term investments 2620

Loss before income taxes 19366 4536 1685

Provision benefit for income taxes 31138 1943 1336

Net loss 50504 2593 349

Basic loss per share 3.23 0.16 0.02

Diluted loss per share 3.23 016 0.02

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements



Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of September 30 2009 and 2008 In Thousands of Dollars Except for Share Data

2009 2008

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 24114 22073

Restricted cash 569

Short-term investments 759 5700

Refundable income taxes 466 230

Accounts receivable and other net of allowance for doubtful accounts of

$598 and $555 as of September 30 2009 and 2008 respectively 11738 17035

Inventories

Raw materials 5760 12325

Workinprocess 613 1261

Finished products 3564 6237

Total inventories 9937 19823

Deferred income taxes 303 5483

Prepaid expenses 1753 2079

Total current assets 49639 72423

Property plant and equipment at cost

Land 1325 1325

Buildings and leasehold improvements 18053 17240

Manufacturing laboratory and office equipment 34703 35761

54081 54326

Less-Accumulated depreciation and amortization 42981 41174

Total property plant and equipment net 11100 13152

Deferred income taxes 748 26097

Intangible assets 910 1190

Other assets 10705 25116

Total assets 73102 137978

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Current liabilities

Short-term debt 23

Accounts payable 4916 7325

Accrued payroll and related expenses 5648 7073

Other accrued expenses 5424 6142

Income taxes payable 1122 1174

Total current liabilities 17110 21737

Long-term deferred compensation 2111 2561

Deferred income taxes 65

Long-term income taxes payable 2852 2919

Other long-term liabilities 14419 7394

Commitments and contingencies See Note

Shareholders equity

Common Shares stated value $0125

Authorized 80000000 issued and outstanding

14950093 and 14722585 in 2009 and 2008 respectively 187 184

Ch-
Ii U1I1II1UI1 iiaie5 taLCu V4IUL

Authorized -9000000 issued and outstanding 2150502 in 2009 and 2008 27 27

Capital in excess of stated value 39121 38930

Retained earnings 28629 80759

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 15900 1873

Common Shares held in treasury at cost 15454 14725

Total shareholders equity 36610 103302

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $73102 $137978

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements



Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity

For the years ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 In Thousands of Dollars Except for Per Share Data

Capital Accumulated Common

Class in excess other Shares IOta

Common Common of stated Retained comprchcnsivc held in shareholders

Shares Shares value earnings income treasury equity

Balance September 30 2006 180 27 33703 88393 615 6415 116503

Comprehensive Income

Net loss 349
Translation adjustment 459

Minimum pension liability adjustment

Net unrealized loss on derivative securities 126
Net unrealized investment gain 83

Total comprehensive income 65

Adjustment to initially apply accounting change

ttt recognize funded status of pension plans

net of taxes of $1081 1975 1975
Stock-based compensation 1508 1509

Cash dividends

Commttn Shares $J5 per share 2110 2110
Class Common Shares 8.12 per share 258 258

Shares issued under stock plans net of taxes 1011 172 840

Common Shares acquired for

settlement of deferred Directors fees 255 255
Common Shares reissued in settlement

of Directors fees 41 41

Repurchase of Common Shares 1550 1550

Balance September 30 2007 182 27 36436 85676 946 8351 113024

Comprehensive Loss

Net loss 2593
Translation adjustment 85

Pension liability adjustment 720
Net unrealized gain on derivative securities 132

Net unrealized investment loss 424
Total comprehensive loss 3520
Stock-based compensation 1832 1832

Cash dividends

Common Shares $15 per share 2049 2049
Class Common Shares $12 per share 258 258

Adoption of FIN 48 17 17
Shares issued under stock plans net of taxes 451 453

Common Shares acquired for

settlement of deferred Directors fees 234 234
Common Shares reissued in settlement

of Directors fees 23 23

Repurchase of Common Shares 6163 6163

Balance September 30 2008 184 27 38930 80759 1873 14725 103302

Comprehensive Loss

Net loss 50504

Translation adjustment 424

Pension liability adjustment 14756
Net unrealized gain on derivative Securities 137
Net unrealized investment gain 442

Total comprehensive loss 64531
Stock-based compensation 53 53
Implementation of pension measurement date change 105 105
Cash dividends

Common Shares 8.10 per share 1349 1349
Class Common Shares 8.08 per share 172 172

Shares issued under stock plans net of taxes 302 305

Common Shares acquired for

settlement of deferred Directors fees 228 228
Common Shares reissued in settlement

of Directors fees 286 286

Repurchase of Ccsmmon Shares 787 787

Balance September 30 2009 187 27 39121 28629 15900 15454 36610

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of the cttnsolidated financial statements



50504

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 In Thousands of Dollars

2009 2007

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in provided by

operating activities

Depreciation

Amortization

Deferred income taxes

Deferred compensation

Stock-based compensation

Non-cash charges for exit of product line

Loss on the disposition/impairment of assets

Change in current assets and liabilities

Refundable income taxes

Accounts receivable and other

Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Other current liabilities

Other operating activities

Net cash used in provided by operating activities

349

Cash flows from
investing

activities

Capital expenditures 1994 3831 4511
Restricted cash 569
Purchase of investments and other 759 13225 32927
Proceeds from maturities and sales of investments 12500 33087 36913

Net cash provided by used in investing
activities 9178 16031 525

Cash flows from
financing activities

Net repayment of short-term debt 25 861 79
Proceeds from employee stock purchase and option plans 212 347 487

Tax benefit of stock purchase and stock-based

compensation arrangements 92 140 358

Repurchase of Common Shares 787 6163 1550
Cash dividends 1521 2307 2368
Net cash used in

financing activities 2029 8844 3152
Effect of changes in foreign currency exchange

rates on cash and cash equivalents 308 292 423

Increase in cash and cash
equivalents 2041 9185 2387

Cash and cash
equivalents at beginning of period 22073 12888 10501

Cash and cash
equivalents at end of period 24114 22073 12888

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Cash paid during the year for

Income taxes 1229 1945 1565

Interest 53 59 50
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In Thousands of Dollars Exccpt for Per-Share Data

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Keithley Instruments Inc and its subsidiaries Keithley or Company

Intercompany transactions have been eliminated

Nature of operations

Keithleys business is design develop manufacture and market complex electronic instruments and systems to serve the specialized needs

of electronics manufacturers for high-performance production testing process monitoring product development and research Our primary

products are integrated systems used to source measure connect control or communicate electrical direct current DC or optical signals

Although our products vary in capability sophistication use size and price they generally test measure and analyze electrical RE optical or

physical properties As such we consider our business to be in single industry segment

On November 19 2009 the Company announced it entered into Purchase and Sale Agreement Purchase Agreementwith Agilent

Technologies Inc Agilent with respect to the sale of its RF product line and the transaction closed on November 30 2009 Accordingly our

business will no longer include those operations subsequent to the closing tlate See Note for details

Revenue recognition

Keithley Instruments Inc recognizes product revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists delivery has occurred the sales

price is fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured Delivery is considered to have been met when title and risk of loss

have transferreti to the customer Upon shipment provision is made for estimated costs that may he incurred for product warranties and

sales returns Revenue earneti from service is recognized ratably over the contractual service periods and is nut material to the Companys

consolidated results Shipping and hantlling costs are recorded as Cost of goods sold in the Consoliclated Statements of Operations

Foreign currency translation

Our revenues costs and expenses
and assets and liabilities are exposed to changes in foreign currency exchange rates as result of our global

operations For those subsidiaries that operate in local functional currency environment all assets and liabilities are translated into U.S dollars

using current exchange rates and revenues and expenses are translated using weighted average exchange rates in effect during the period

Resulting translation adjustments are reported as separate component of accumulated comprehensive income in shareholders equity For those

entities that operate in U.S dollar functional currency environment foreign currency assets and liabilities are remeasured into U.S dollars at

current exchange rates Gains or losses from foreign currency remeasurement are generally immaterial and are included in the Selling general

and administrative expenses caption of the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Advertising

Advertising production and placement costs are expensed when incurred Advertising expenses were $5043 $7985 and $8066 in 2009 2008

and 2007 respectively

Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of software costs and are amortized over the estimated economic life of the software products which is estimated to

he five years At each balance sheet date the unamortized cost of the software is compared to its net realizable value The net realizable value

is the estimated future gross revenues from the software product reducetl by the estimated future costs of completing and disposing of that

product including the costs of performing maintenance and customer support The excess of the unamortized cost over the net realizable value

would then he recognized as an impairment loss Amortization expense
is recorded as Cost of goods sold in the Consolidated Statements of

Operations and was $280 $210 and $0 in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Product development expenses

Expenditures for product development are charged to expense as incurred

Fair value measurements

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified using the following hierarchy which is based upon the transparency of inputs to the

valuation as of the measurement date

Level Valuation is based upon quoted prices unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in active markets

Level Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or other inputs that are observable for the

asset or liability
either

directly
or indirectly for substantially the full term of the financial instrument

Level Valuation is based upon other unobservable inputs that are significant
to the fair value measurement

The classification of fair value measurements within the hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the measurement

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased to he cash equivalents The

Companys cash equivalents and investments are diversified with numerous financial institutions which management believes to have acceptable

credit ratings These investments are primarily money-market funds and short term certificates of deposit The recorded amount of these

investments approximates fair value determined based on Level and inputs as defined under U.S GAAP Cash flows resulting from hedging

transactions are classified in the same category as the cash flows from the item being hedged

Restricted cash

Effective March 31 2009 the Company amended its $1l000 credit agreement to reduce the borrowing limit to $5000 among other changes

While the agreement no longer contains debt covenants the Company is required to pledge cash against outstanding borrowings and letters of

credit See Note for further details
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Accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts

1iade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest The allowance for doubtful accounts is our best estimate

of the amount of probable credit losses in our existing accounts receivable We determine the allowance based on historical write-off experience

by industry and regional economic data We review our allowance for doubtful accounts periodically and all account balances are reviewed for

collectability Account balances are charged off against the allowance when we feel it is probable the receivable will not be recovered We do not

have any off-balance sheet credit exposure related to our customers The changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts for fiscal years ending
September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 are as follows

2009 2008 2007

Balanceatbeginningofyear 555 500 448

Additions 79 63 48

Write-offs net of recoveries 43 11
Foreign exchange revaluation

15

Balance at end of year 598 555 500

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market Cost is determined based on currently-adjusted standard which approximates actual cost

on first-in first-out basis The Company provides inventory allowances based on excess and obsolete inventories determined primarily by future

demand forecasts The allowance is measured as the difference between the cost of the inventory and market based upon assumptions about
future demand and charged to the provision for

inventory which is component of Cost of goods sold At the point of the loss recognition new
lower-cost basis for that inventory is established and subsequent changes in facts and circumstances do not result in the restoration or increase

in that newly established cost basis See Note for further details

Property plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment are stated at cost Depreciation is provided over periods approximating the estimated useful lives of the assets

Substantially all manufacturing laboratory and office equipment is depreciated by the double declining balance method over periods of to 10 years

Buildings are depreciated by the straight-line method over periods of 23 to 45 years Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the

asset lives or the terms of the leases Depreciation expense was $3626 $4157 and $4380 in fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Capitalized software

Certain internal and external costs incurred to acquire or create internal use software are capitalized Capitalized software is included in property

plant and equipment and is depreciated over to years after it is placed in service

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment when events or circumstances indicate costs may not be recoverable Impairment exists when the

carrying value of the assets is greater than the pretax undiscounted future cash flows expected to be provided by the asset If impairment exists

the asset is written down to its fair value Fair value is determined through quoted market values or through the calculation of the pretax present
value of future cash flows expected to be provided by the asset

Capital stock

The Company has two classes of stock Each Class Common Share has ten times the voting power of Common Share but the Class Common
Shares are entitled to cash dividends of no more than 80% of the cash dividends on the Common Shares Holders of Common Shares voting as

class elect one-fourth of the Companys Board of Directors and participate with holders of Class Common Shares in electing the balance of the

Directors and in voting on all other corporate matters requiring shareholder approval Additional Class Common Shares may be issued only to

holders of such shares for stock dividends or stock
splits

These shares are convertible at any time to Common Shares on one-for-one basis

The number of Common Shares Class Common Shares and Common Shares held in
treasury is shown below

Class

Common Shares

Common Shares

Common Shares held in treasury

Balance at September 30 2006 14410245 2150502 551625
Common Shares acquired for settlement of

deferred Directors fees
21542

Common Shares reissued in settlement of directors fees
1934

Shares issued under stock plans 170733

Repurchase of Common Shares
168815

Balance at September 30 2007 14580978 2150502 740048
Common Shares acquired for settlement of

deferred Directors fees
26162

Common Shares reissued in settlement of directors fees
1616

Shares issued under stock plans 141607

Repurchase of Common Shares
636600

Balance at September 30 2008 14722585 2150502 1401194
Common Shares acquired for settlement of

deferred Directors fees
64643

Common Shares reissued in settlement of directors fees
34530

Shares issued under stock plans 227508

Repurchase of Common Shares
166733

Balance at September 30 2009 14950093 2150502 1598040
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Accumulated other comprehensive loss

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss net of taxes at Septcmher 30 2009 2008 and 2007 are as follows

2009 2008 2007

Translation adjustment 1671 1247 1162

Net unrealized gain loss on derivative securities 91 46 86

Net unrealized investment loss 442 18

Benefit plan obligation 17480 2724 2004

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 15900 1873 946

Income taxes

Deferred tax assets and liahilities are recognized under the liability method hased
upon

the difference hetween the amounts reported for financial

reporting and tax purposes
Deferred taxes are measured by applying currently enacted tax rates Valuation allowances are established when

necessary to reflect the estimated amount of deferred tax assets that may not he realized based
upon

the Companys analysis of estimated future

taxable income and establishment of tax strategies Future taxable income the results of tax strategies and changes in tax laws could impact

these estimates We have provided for estimated foreign withholding taxes and United States income taxes less available tax credits for the

undistrihuted earnings of the non-United States subsidiaries as of September 30 2009 2008 and 2007

Restructuring and Cost Reduction Programs

We expense
costs associated with exit and disposal activities designed to restructure operations

and reduce ongoing costs of operations when

we incur the related liabilities or when other triggering events occur After the appropriate level of management having the authority approves

the detailed cost reduction or restructuring plan we establish accruals for underlying activities by estimating employee termination costs Our

estimates are based upon
factors including affected employees length of service any statutory requirements contract provisions salary level and

health care benefit choices As part of our assessment of exit and disposal activities we also analyze the carrying value of any affected long-lived

assets for impairment and reductions in the estimated useful lives

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires

management to make estimates and assumptions These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the reported financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses

during the reporting periods Examples include the allowance for doubtful accounts estimates of contingent liabilities inventory valuation

pension plan assumptions estimates and assumptions relating to stock-based compensation costs and the assessment of the valuation of

deferred income taxes and income tax reserves Actual results could differ from those estimates

Earnings per
share

Both Common Shares and Class Common Shares are included in calculating earnings per share The weighted average number of shares

outstanding used in the calculation is set forth below

2009 2008 2007

Net Net loss in thousands 50504 2593 349

Weighted average shares outstanding 15648258 15853938 16206698

Assumed exercise of stock optionsweighted average of incremental shares

Assumed purchase of stock under stock purchase plan weighted average

Diluted shares adjusted weighted-average shares and assumed conversions 15648258 15853938 16206698

Basic loss per
share 3.23 0.16 0.02

Diluted loss
per

share 3.23 0.16 0.02

Due to the net losses in fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 33967 187252 and 165176 shares respectively were excluded from the dilutive calculation

for the exercise of stock options the issuance of stock-based awards and purchase of stock under the stock purchase plan

Stock-based compensation

As of September 30 2009 the Company had established number of stock-based incentive programs as discussed in more detail in Note The

provisions of U.S GAAP require that all stock-based compensation be recognized as an expense in the financial statements and that such cost be

measured at the fair value of the award U.S GAAF also requires that excess tax benefits related to stock option exercises be reflected as financing

cash inflows instead of operating cash inflows In calculating diluted earnings per share we have elected to use the actual method for calculating

windfall tax benefits or shortfalls for fully
and

partially
vested options in arriving at the assumed proceeds in the treasury stock calculation We

used the adoption transition guidance in determining the pool of windfall tax benefits upon adoption

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

In accordance with U.S GAAP all of the Companys derivative instruments are recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value The Company

currently utilizes foreign exchange forward contracts or option contracts to sell foreign currencies to fix the exchange rates related to near-term sales

and effectively fix the Companys margins Underlying hedged transactions are recorded at hedged rates therefore realizetl and unrealized gains and

losses arc recorded when the hedged transactions occur



On the date the derivative contract is entered into the Company designates its derivative as either hedge of the fair value of recognized asset

or liability fair value hedge as hedge of the
variability of cash flows to be received cash flow hedge or as foreign-currency cash flow

hedge foreign currency hedge Changes in the fair value of derivative that is highly effective as and that is designated and qualifies as
fair value hedge along with the gain or loss on the hedged asset or liability that is attributable to the hedged risk are recorded in current period

earnings Changes in the fair value of derivative that is highly effective and that is designed and
qualifies as cash flow hedge are recorded in other

comprehensive income until earnings are affected by the transaction in the underlying asset Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are highly

effective and that qualify as foreign currency hedges are recorded in either current period income or other comprehensive income depending on

whether the hedge transaction is fair value hedge or cash flow hedge We determine fair value based
upon Level inputs as defined under U.S

GAAP At September 30 2009 the foreign exchange forward contracts were designated as foreign currency hedges

The Company documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items as well as its risk-management objective and
strategy

for undertaking various hedge transactions The Company also assesses whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly

effective in
offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items If it is determined that derivative is not highly effective as hedge the Company

discontinues hedge accounting prospectively Cash flows resulting from hedging transactions are classified in the consolidated statements of cash

flows in the same category as the cash flows from the item being hedged

Reclassffications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year notes to conform to the current year presentation

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued the Accounting Standards Codification ASC to serve as the single

source of authoritative U.S GAAP The ASC supersedes all the existing non-SEC accounting and reporting standards upon its effective date and

subsequently the FASB will not issue new standards in the form of Statements Staff Positions or Emerging Issues Task Force Abstracts The

guidance is not intended to change or alter existing U.S GAAP The guidance became effective for the Company in the fourth quarter of fiscal

2009 Adoption did not have an impact on its consolidated results of operations financial position or cash flows

In May 2009 the FASB issued authoritative guidance which establishes general standards for accounting and disclosure of events occurring

subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to issuance of the financial statements The guidance is not intended to result in
significant change

to current practice The Company adopted the guidance in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2009 Adoption did not have an effect on its consolidated

results of operations financial position or cash flows

In April 2009 the FASB issued authoritative guidance for disclosures about derivative instruments and hedging activities The guidance is

intended to improve financial reporting about derivative instruments and hedging activities by requiring enhanced disclosures to enable investors

to better understand their effects on an entitys results of operations The Company adopted the guidance in the third quarter of fiscal 2009

Adoption did not have an effect on its consolidated results of operations financial position or cash flows

In March 2008 the FASB issued updates to guidance amending and expanding the disclosure requirements related to the use of derivative

instruments and hedging activities to provide improved transparency into the uses and financial statement impact of derivative instruments and

hedging activities The new disclosure provisions were adopted by the Company in the second
quarter of fiscal 2009 See Note for the required

disclosures related to derivative instruments and hedging activities

In September 2006 the FASB issued guidance that requires that employers recognize the funded status of defined benefit pension and other

postretirement benefit plans as net asset or liability on the balance sheet and recognize as component of other comprehensive income net

of tax the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that arise during the period but are not recognized as component of net periodic

benefit cost Companies are required to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of their fiscal year end The Company adopted the

presentation requirements of the guidance in fiscal 2007 which resulted in charge to other comprehensive income of $1975 We adopted
the measurement date provisions in 2009 and as result recorded charge of $105 to retained earnings See Note for additional information

related to the change in measurement date provisions

In September 2006 the FASB issued authoritative guidance which established framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted

accounting principles and expanded disclosures about fair value measurements The guidance is applicable to other accounting pronouncements
that require or permit fair value measurements Accordingly the guidance did not require any new fair value measurements Howeveq for some

entities the application changed current practice The guidance became effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after

November 15 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years Howevei the FASB provided one-year deferral for the implementation for

nonfinancial assets and liabilities The Company adopted the guidance effective October 2008 except with respect to nonfinancial assets and

liabilities and the adoption did not have material impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements

In February 2007 the FASB issued guidance which allows companies to choose at specified election dates to measure eligible
financial assets

and liabilities at fair value that are not otherwise required to be measured at fair value Unrealized gains and losses shall be reported on items for

which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date The guidance was effective for fiscal years beginning

after November 15 2007 The Company adopted the guidance effective October 2008 and the adoption did not have material impact on its

Consolidated Financial Statements

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009 the FASB issued updates to guidance that address accounting for variable interest entities These updates to ASC 810 are effective

for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2011 The Company is currently assessing the impact that adoption will have on its consolidated

results of operations financial position or cash flows
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In December 2008 the FASB issued updates to the guidance which is intended to enhance disclosures regarding assets in defined benefit pension

or other postretirement plans The updates are effective for the Company in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 The Company does not anticipate

the adoption to have material effect on its Consolidated Financial Statements

Note Product Warranties

Generally the Companys products are covered under one-year warranty howevei certain products are covered under two or three-year

warranty It is the Companys policy to accrue for all product warranties based
upon historical in-warranty repair data In addition the Company

accrues for
specifically

identified product performance issues The Company also offers extended warranties for certain of its products for which

revenue is recognized over the life of the contract period The costs associated with servicing the extended warranties are expensed as incurred

The revenue as well as the costs related to the extended warranties are immaterial for fiscal
years 2009 2008 and 2007

reconciliation of the estimated changes in the aggregated product warranty liability
for fiscal

year 2009 and 2008 is as follows

2009 2008

Beginning balance 701 722

Accruals for warranties issued during the period 984 1345

Accruals related to pre-existing warranties including

changes in estimates and expiring warranties 116 178

Settlements made in cash or in kind during the period 1103 1188

Ending balance 466 701

Note Repurchase of Common Shares

In February 2007 the Company announced its Board of Directors had approved an open
market stock repurchase program the 2007 Program

Prior to its expiration on February 28 2009 the 2007 Program allowed the Company to purchase up to 2000000 Common Shares which

represented approximately 12 percent of its total outstanding Common Shares at the start of the 2007 Program total of 942600 shares at an

average price of $8.97 per share including commissions were repurchased through the life of the 2007 Program The
purpose

of the 2007 Program

was to offset the dilutive effect of stock option and stock purchase plans and to provide value to shareholders Common Shares held in treasury

maybe reissued in settlement of stock purchases under the stock option and stock purchase plans

During fiscal
year 2009 the Company purchased 166733 Common Shares for $787 at an average cost of $4.72 per share including commissions

This includes 11733 Common Shares withheld for payroll taxes upon the issuance of Common Shares for vested performance award units in

November 2008 During fiscal year 2008 the Company purchased 636600 Common Shares for $6163 at an average cost per share of $9.68

including commissions

The following table summarizes the Companys stock repurchase activity

2009 2008

Total number of shares purchased 166733 636600

Average price paid per share including commissions 4.72 9.68

Identity of broker-dealer used to effect the purchases National Financial National Financial

Securities LLC Securities LLC

Number of shares purchased as part of publicly announced repurchase program 155000 636600

Maximum number of shares that remain to be purchased under the program 1212400

At September 30 2009 and 2008 1377648 and 1210915 Common Shares purchased under the Companys share repurchase programs remained

in treasury at an average cost including commissions of $9.94 and $10.66 respectively

Also included in the Common shares held in treasury at cost caption of the consolidated balance sheets are shares repurchased to settle non-

employee Directors fees deferred pursuant to the Keithley Instruments Inc 1996 Outside Directors Deferred Stock Plan Shares held in treasury

pursuant to this plan totaled 220392 and 190279 at September 30 2009 and 2008 respectively

Note Investments and Notes Receivable

The Company classifies its certificates of deposits and money market fund investments in fiscal year 2009 as trading which requires they be

recorded at fair market value in the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet with the changes in fair value and resulting gains and losses included

in the Companys Consolidated Statements of Operations For fiscal 2008 the Company classified its short-term investments and certain of its

long-term investments which were comprised of corporate notes and bonds and auction rate securities as available for sale which under

U.S GAAP requires they were recorded at fair market value in the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet with the changes in fair market value

included in Accumulated other comprehensive loss There were no realized gains or losses on sales of marketable securities in fiscal years 2009

2008 or 2007 U.S GAAP defines fair value as the price that would be received
upon

sale of an asset or paid upon transfer of liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date and in the principal or most advantageous market for that asset or liability

We determined the fair market value of the trading investments at September 30 2009 using quoted prices for similarassets which is Level

hierarchy fair value measurement
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Trading investments at September 30 2009 were comprised of the following

Adjusted cost Unrealized gains Unrealized losses Market value

Short Term

Certificates of deposits and money market funds 759 759

Available-for-sale investments at September 30 2008 were comprised of the following

Adjusted cost Unrealized gains Unrealized losses Market value

Short Term

Corporate notes and bonds 4700 4700

Auction rate securities 1000 1000

Long Term

Auction rate securities 6800 680 6120

Total available-foosale investments 12500 680 11820

The long-term auction rate securities are included in the caption Other assets on the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 30

2008

At September 30 2009 and 2008 the investments have maturity dates as follows

2009 2008

Less than year 759

year to years

to 10 years

lOto 15 years

Greater than 15 years 11820

Total investments 759 11820

Our auction rate securities ARS were private placement securities primarily backed by student college loans with long-term nominal maturities

for which the interest rates are reset through an auction each month Auctions for these types of securities began to fail during the second quarter

of fiscal
year 2008 which caused us to record an unrealized loss through accumulated other comprehensive loss and reclassify the balance to

long-term as of September 30 2008 The $1000 of ARS that were classified as short-term investments at September 30 2008 were redeemed the

first week of October 2008 Additionally in early October 2008 the Company received an offer from Citigroup Global Markets Citigroup the

investment provider for its ARS to sell at par value the remaining $6800 of ARS In October 2008 Citigroup redeemed these ARS and we reversed

the unrealized losses that were recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss As such the Company no longer had any auction rate securities

as of September 30 2009

The caption Other assets on the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheets includes the following long-term investments carried using the cost

method at September 30 2009 and 2008

2009 2008

Non-marketable equity securities 150 150

Venture capital fund 32 53

Notes receivable net of reserve of $1500 at September 30 2009 and 2008 1753 1797

1935 2000

Notes receivable at September 30 2009 and 2008 include note with principal balance of $2750 plus accrued interest of $503 which was

accrued at rate of 8.65% compounded annually This note including interest becomes payable on demand on or after September 21 2016 We

agreed to suspend interest accumulation during fiscal 2009 and accordingly interest due to us is unchanged from last year end Effective October

2009 the note accrues interest at an annual rate of 6.5% The impairment loss recorded in fiscal year 2008 included $1500 representing

valuation allowance against this note receivable no changes to this valuation allowance were recorded in 2009 The valuation allowance was

established as the Company believes that it is probable that it will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the

loan agreement The fair market value was determined by examining the collateral value of the assets pledged by the grantor on the balance sheet

dates based upon financial information provided by the grantor Long-term notes receivable at September 30 2008 also includes $40 in principal

plus interest at rate of 8.25% per annum This note plus interest is payable through August 31 2010 and is classified in Accounts receivable and

other in the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of September 30 2009

The Company reviews its long-term investments for other-than-temporary impairment whenever the fair value of an investment is less than

amortized cost and evidence indicates that an investments carrying value is not recoverable within reasonable period of time In the evaluation

of whether an impairment is other-than-temporary the Company considers its ability and intent to hold the investment until the market price

recovers the reasons for the impairment compliance with the Companys investment policy the severity and duration of the impairment and

expected future performance Based on this evaluation the Company recorded impairment losses of $2620 and $109 during fiscal years 2008 and

2007 respectively on its long-term investments carried at cost The Company recorded no impairment losses during 2009
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Note Financing Arrangements
Effective March 31 2009 the Company amended its $10000 credit agreement The revised agreement consists of $5000 facility $0 of short-

term debt and $569 of standby letters of credit outstanding at September 30 2009 that provides unsecured multi-currency revolving credit at

various interest rates based on Prime or LIBOR LIBOR was 0.29% and the Prime rate was 3.25% as of September 30 2009 The agreement no

longer contains debt covenants hut requires cash to he pledged against outstanding borrowings and standby letters of credit The expiration date

of March 31 2011 remains unchanged The Company is required to pay facility
fee of 0.25% per annum on the total amount of the commitment

The agreement may be extended annually Additionally per the terms of the agreement the Company may borrow up to $5000 from other

lenders The Company has number of other such credit facilities in various currencies and for standby letters of credit aggregating $1585 $0

outstanding at September 30 2009 At September 30 2009 the Company had total unused lines of credit with domestic and foreign banks

aggregating $6016

Under the Companys former facility there were no borrowings during 2008 or 2007 Additionally the Company had number of other credit

facilities in various currencies and for standby letters of credit aggregating $5000 $23 of short-term debt and $603 for standby letters of credit

outstanding at September 30 2008 The weighted average interest rate on short-term borrowings was 5.6% and 3.4% at September 30 2008 and

2007 respectively The Company had total unused lines of credit with domestic and foreign banks aggregating $14374 of which $10000 was long-

term and $4374 was combination of long-term and short-term depending upon
the nature of the indebtedness at September 30 2008 Under

certain provisions of the former debt agreements the Company was required to comply with various financial ratios and covenants

Note Derivatives and Hedging Activities

In the normal course of business the Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage foreign currency exchange rate risk The Company

tInes not enter into derivative transactions for trading purposes The objective of the Companys hedging strategy is to hedge the foreign currency

risk associated with the anticipated sale of inventory and the settlement of the related intercompany accounts receivable The forward contracts

are designated as cash flow hedges that encompass the variability of U.S dollar cash flows attributable to the settlement of intercompany foreign

currency denominated receivables resulting from the sale of inventory manufactured in the U.S to our wholly-owned foreign subsidiaries The

foreign exchange forward contracts generally have maturities of three months or less Changes in the fair value of these derivatives are recorded

in the financial statement line item Accumulated other comprehensive loss on the consolidated balance sheets and reclassified into the financial

statement line item Cost of goods sold on the consolidated statements of operations in the same period during which the hedged transaction

affects earnings Cash flows resulting from hedging transactions are classified in the consolidated statements of cash flows in the same category as

the cash flows from the item being hedged i.e in operating activities In accordance with U.S GAA1 all of the Companys derivative instruments

are recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value At September 30 2009 the Company had obligations under foreign exchange forward

contracts to sell 1950000 Euros 225000 British pounds and 150000000 Yen at various dates through December 2009

At September 30 2009 and 2008 the fair values of the derivative instruments are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets as follows

2009 2008

Assets

Contract value $371 $3739

Fair value 360 3499

Total asset 11 240

Liabilities

Contract value 4350 2353

Fair value 4531 2392

Total liability 181 39

Net liability asset 170 201

The net asset or net liability balances are included in the line items Prepaid expenses or Other accrued expenses on the Companys

consolidated balance sheets Forward foreign exchange contracts are entered into with substantial and creditworthy multinational banks The fair

market value was determined by utilizing
valuation received from the foreign currency tradefi which we independently verified and as such is

considered to be derived from Level inputs as defined by U.S GAAP

At September 30 2009 the amount related to derivatives designated as cash flow hedges and recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive

loss totaled $91 which is expected to be reclassified into earnings in the next three months See Note for gains and losses recognized in

Comprehensive loss Set forth below are the amounts and location of losses on derivative instruments and related hedged items reclassified from

Other comprehensive income loss and included in the Statement of Operations for the years ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007

Financial Statement Line Item 2009 2008 2007

Cost of goods sold $245 $314 $30

The Company documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items as well as its risk-management objective and strategy

for undertaking various hedge transactions The Company also assesses whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly

effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items At September 30 2009 the derivatives were considered highly effective If it was

determined that derivative was not highly effective as hedge the Company would discontinue hedge accounting prospectivels



Note Foreign Currency

The functional
currency for the Companys foreign subsidiaries is the applicable local currency Income and expenses are translated into US

dollars at average exchange rates for the period Assets and liabilities are translated at the rates in effect at the end of the period Translation gains

and losses are recognized in the accumulated other comprehensive income component of shareholders equity

Certain transactions of the Company and its foreign subsidiaries are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency The

Consolidated Statements of Operations include gains from such foreign exchange transactions of $23 $61 and $290 for 2009 2008 and 2007

respectively

Note Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering all of its eligible employees in the United States and contributory

defined benefit plan covering eligible
German employees Pension benefits are based upon the employees length of service and percentage

of compensation The Company also has government mandated defined benefit retirement plans for its eligible employees in Japan and Korea

however these plans are not material to the Companys consolidated financial statements

In September 2006 the FASB issued guidance in ASC 715 CompensationRetirement Benefits that requires employers to recognize the funded

status of defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans as net asset or liability on the balance sheet and recognize as

component of other comprehensive income net of tax the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that arise during the period but

are not recognized as component of net periodic benefit cost Under ASC 715 companies are required to measure plan assets and benefit

obligations as of their fiscal year end The Company adopted the presentation requirements of ASC 715 in fiscal 2008 and the measurement date

provisions in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009

Upon adoption of the measurement provisions in fiscal 2009 we recorded charge to retained earnings of $105 for the Companys U.S pension

plans The measurement date for the Companys other defined benefit pension plans was September 30 in prior years and as such there was

no effect of the adoption for those plans Effective September 30 2007 we adopted the funding status recognition provisions and recorded an

after-tax adjustment to reduce other comprehensive income by $1975

The following table sets forth the funded status of the Companys significant benefit plans at September 30 2009 and 2008

United States Plan German Plan

2009 2008 2009 2008

Change in projected benefit obligations

Benefit obligation at beginning of year 36594 37567 7384 7306

Service cost 1895 1677 182 231

Interest cost 3194 2356 438 417

Actuarial loss gain 5147 3804 495 263
Benefits paid 1537 1202 270 203
Curtailments 1110

Foreign currency exchange rate changes 281 104

Benefitobligationatyearend 44183 36594 7520 7384

Accumulated benefit obligation at year end 41115 33128 7000 6802

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 44549 45177 1493 1439

Actual loss return on pension assets 6532 1926 100 42

Employer contributions 750 2500 67 19

Participants contributions
50

Benefits paid 1537 1202 42 34
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 10 23
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 37230 44549 1628 1493

Pension liability/prepaid pension assets recognized 6953 7955 5892 5891

The Company has purchased indirect insurance which is expected to be available to the Company as German pension liabilities mature The

caption Other assets on the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheets includes $6607 and $6087 at September 30 2009 and 2008 respectively

for this asset In accordance with U.S GAAP this Company asset is not included in the German plan assets

The amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets shown above for the United States Plan are included in the caption Other long
term liabilities and Other assets as of September 30 2009 and 2008 respectivelyThe amounts shown for the German plan are included in the

caption Other long-term liabilities
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As of September 30 2009 and 2008 accumulated other comprehensive loss before tax was comprised of the following

United States Plan German Plan

2009 2008 2009 2008

Unrecognized actuarial loss gain 19834 4579 978 456

Unrecognized prior service cost 189 335 17 21

Accumulated other comprehensive loss income 20023 4914 961 435

Activity
and balances in accumulated other comprehensive loss before tax related to defined benefit pension plans are summarized below

United States Plan German Plan

2009 2008 2009 2008

Balance at beginning of year 4914 3520 435 215

Net actuarial loss gain arising during the year 15310 1656 467 228

Amortization of actuarial net loss 55 83

Amortization of prior service cost 101 179

Adjustment to apply new measurement provision guidance

as of October 2008 45

Exchange rate effects
54 14

Balance at end of year 20023 4914 961 435

Estimated prior service costs of $30 for the United States Plan and f5 for the German plan will be amortized from accumulated other

comprehensive loss into net period benefit cost in fiscal 2010 Additionally $398 of unrecognized actuarial losses in the United States plan will

also he amortized into net periodic benefit cost in fiscal 2010

summary
of the components of net periodic pension cost based on the respective measurement dates for the United States and German plans

is shown below

United States Plan

2008

German Plan

2009 2009 2008

Service cost-benefits earned during the year 1505 1677 170 231

Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 2565 2356 444 417

Expected return on plan assets 3780 3533 76 77

Curtailment loss
44

Amortization of transition asset 16 23

Amortization of prior service cost 57 179

Amortization of actuarial net loss 55 83

Net periodic pension cost 446 762 527 600

As of the measurement dates the asset allocation for the United States plan by category was as follows

September 30 2009 June 30 2008

Equity securities 63% 64%

Fixed income 17 14

Market neutral hedge fund 14 18

Cash equivalent money market fund

Real estate

100% 100%

The United States plan investment strategy is to emphasize total return which is defined as the aggregate return from capital appreciation

dividends and interest income In determining the asset classes in which this plan will invest as well as the target weightings for each asset

class the Company gives consideration to several factors These include historical risk and return statistics for each asset class and the statistical

relationships between the asset classes The Company also has recognized certain aspects specific to this plan including but not limited to the

current funding status the average age of employee participants and the
ability

of the Company to make future contributions

German plan assets represent employee and Company contributions and are invested by an insurance company
in direct insurance contract

payable to the individual participants
The insurance company directs the investments for this contract

The
significant

actuarial assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at September 30 2009 and 2008 were as follows



2009 2008

United States Pension Plan

Discount rateDiscount rate 60% 7.0%

Rate of increase in compensation levels 0.0% for two years and 3.5% thereafter 4.0%

German Pension Plan

Discount rateDiscount rate 6.5% 6.25%

Rate of increase in compensation levels 2.5% 2.5%

The significant actuarial assumptions used to determine net pension expense for fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007 were as follows

2008 2007 2006

United States Pension Plan

Discount rate 7.0%/ 6.875% 6.375% 6.625%

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.0% 8.25% 8.25%

Rate of increase in compensation levels 4.0% 40% 4.0%

German Pension Plan

Discount rate 6.25% 5.5% 4.5%

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

Rate of increase in compensation levels 2.5% 2.5% 3.0%

We used two discount rates in determining the fiscal 2009 U.S plans net pension expense due to the remeasurement that occurred as of February

28 2009 in connection with curtailment event For fiscal 2009 expense recognized until February 28 2009 discount rate of 7.0% was used

Following that date net pension expense was determined using discount rate of 6.875% The reduction in the discount rate reflects interest rate

declines driven by the disruption experienced in the credit markets from October 2008 through February 2009

In determining its expected long-term rate-of-return-on-assets assumption for the fiscal year ending September 30 2009 the Company considered

historical experience its asset allocation expected future long-term rates of return for each major asset class an assumed long-term inflation rate

and an asset performance simulator

Expected future benefit payments for both the United States and the German plans are as follows

United States Plan German Plan

2010 1348 304

2011 1422 328

2012
1608 355

2013 1713 376

2014 1801 407

2015 2019 $11135 $2646

The Company expects to contribute approximately $750 to $1500 to its pension plans in fiscal year 2010

In addition to the defined benefit pension plans the Company also maintains retirement plan for all of its
eligible employees in the United States

under Section 401k of the Internal Revenue Code The Companys practice had been to match minimum of 25 percent of the first six percent

of participants contribution with maximum match
up to 50 percent of the first six percent of participants contribution depending upon the

Companys financial performance as part of its profit sharing program The Company suspended matching contributions for calendar 2009 as part of

its ongoing cost reduction efforts

Expense for the 401k plan amounted to $115 $498 and $555 in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively In addition to the extra 25 percent match in the

401k plan the Company may contribute additional
profit sharing to all

eligible
worldwide employees U.S employee participants at their discretion

may opt for cash payout or may defer the bonus into the 401k plan Non-U.S employees receive cash payout There was no expense related to

the additional
profit sharing program recorded in 2009 2008 or 2007

Note Stock Plans

In December 2008 the Companys Board of Directors approved the Keithley Instruments Inc 2009 Stock Incentive Plan the 2009 Stock Plan and

the Companys shareholders approved iton February 2009 Under the terms of this plan 1000000 Common Shares were reserved for the granting

of equity-based awards to directors officers and other key employees The 2009 Stock Plan expires on February 2019 No awards have been granted

from the 2009 Stock Plan as of September 30 2009

The Companys 2002 Stock Incentive Plan 2002 Stock Plan is also currently active Under the terms of the 2002 Stock Plan 3000000 Common
Shares were reserved for the granting of equity-based awards to directors officers and other key employees This plan expires on February 16 2012

The Company has two other equity-based compensation plans under which options are currently outstanding howeveq no new award may be

granted under the two other plans as they have been terminated or have expired



All options outstanding at the time of termination of all four plans shall continue in full force and effect in accordance with their terms The

Compensation and Human Resources Committee of the Board of Directors administers the plans The option price under nonqualified stock options

is determined hy the Committee based upon the date the option is granted In addition to stock options the 2002 Stock Plan also provides for

restricted stock awards performance unit awards and stock appreciation rights as does the 2009 Plan At Septemher 30 2009 1641183 shares were

registered and available for the granting of equity-based awards to directors officers and other key employees

Stock-based compensation expense is attrihutable to the granting of stock options performance share units restricted share units and restricted

share awards The Company records the
expense using the

single approach method on straight
line basis over the requisite service period of the

respective grants The amount recorded during fiscal 2009 represents net compensation income and includes favorable adjustments of approximately

$950 for performance award units granted in fiscal years 2007 and 2008 which either did not vest or are not expected to vest as the performance

targets were not met or are not expected to be met During fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007 the Company recorded stock-based compensation

income expense as follows

2009 2008 2007

Cost of goods sold 59 152 91

Selling general and administrative expenses 127 1412 1211

Product development expenses 121 268 207

Stock-based compensation included in operating expenses 53 1832 1509

Estimated tax impact of stock-based compensation 598 497

Stock-based compensation income expense net of tax 53 1234 1012

Stock-based compensation expense per share net of tax 0.00 0.08 0.06

At September 30 2009 and 2008 the total estimated unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock-based compensation was $948 and

$2380 respectively and the related weighted-average period over which it is expected to be recognized is approximately 2.3 years and 2.0 years

respectively The excess tax benefit recognized during fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007 was approximately $92 $140 and $358 respectively

Stock Option Activity

summary of the Companys stock option programs
is as follows

Weighted Weighted Average

Number Average Remaining Aggregate

of Shares Exercise Price Contractual Life Years Intrinsic Value

Outstanding at September 30 2006 3322981 20.12 5.83 2333

Options granted at fair market value 106025 13.91

Options exercised 122376 4.70 1045

Options forfeited

Options expired 65050 29.70

Outstanding at September 30 2007 3241580 20.31 5.04 945

Options granted at fair market value 146125 9.13

Options exercised 74874 3.57 459

Options forfeited 32400 13.14

Options expired 253300 24.58

Outstanding at September 30 2008 3027131 19.90 4.43 276

Options granted at fair market value 309050 3.05

Options exercised 35000 4.13

Options forfeited 55810 9.37

Options expired 310620 18.02

Outstanding at September 30 2009 2934751 18.72 4.08 736

Vested and expected to vest

at September 30 2009 2924817 21.18 4.06 714

Exercisable at September 30 2009 2451795 21.18 3.18



The options outstanding at September 30 2009 have been segregated into ranges for additional disclosure as follows

Outstanding Exercisable

Weighted Average

Number Remaining Weighted Number Weighted

Range of of Shares Contractual Average of Shares Average

Exercise Prices Outstanding Life years Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price

$2.99- $9.12 411425 9.01 4.76 0.00

$10.35- $16.12 1083176 3.97 14.72 1011645 14.74

$16.23 $36.85 1107950 3.33 $19.88 1107950 19.88

$45.13- $54.25 332200 0.84 $45.15 332200 45.15

2934751 4.08 $18.72 2451795 21.18

The exercise period for all stock options generally may not exceed ten years from the date of grant Stock option grants to individuals generally

vest
fifty percent after two years and an additional twenty five percent after each of years three and four

The weighted-average fair values at date of grant for options granted during fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007 were $1.08 $3.01 and $5.41 respectively

The fair value of options at the date of grant was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions

2009 2008 2007

Expected life years 4.75 4.75 4.75

Risk-free interest rate 1.90% 3.84% 4.785%

Volatility 49% 38% 42%

Dividend yield 2.5% 1.6% 1.1%

The risk-free interest rate and dividend yield were obtained from published sources based upon factual data In order to determine the expected

life we considered the historical exercise behavioi vesting periods and the remaining contractual life of outstanding options The weighted-

average expected stock-price volatility assumptions were determined primarily based upon observed historical volatility of Keithleys stock price

as there is not substantial enough market for comparable exchange-traded options

Performance Award Units

Beginning in fiscal 2006 the Company began granting performance award units to officers and other key employees The performance award

unit agreements provide for the award of performance units with each unit representing the
right to receive one of the Companys Common

Shares to be issued after the applicable award period The awards were valued at the closing market price of the Companys Common Shares

on the date of grant and vest at the end of the performance period The award period for performance award units granted in fiscal year 2008

will end on September 30 2010 The awards granted in fiscal year 2007 vested on September 30 2009 and no Common Shares were issued The

awards granted in fiscal
year

2006 vested on September 30 2008 and Common Shares were issued on November 2008 The final number of

units earned pursuant to an award may range from minimum of no units to maximum of twice the initial award The awards issued in fiscal

2007 and 2008 could be adjusted in 25 percent increments while those issued in 2006 could be adjusted in 50 percent increments The number

of units earned is based on the Companys revenue growth relative to defined peer group and the Companys return on assets or return on

invested capital The awards that vested on September 30 2008 were issued at 50 percent of
target

in November 2008 The awards that vested on

September 30 2009 were not issued as the payout was zero percent of target

Each reporting period the compensation costs of the performance award units is subject to adjustment based
upon our estimate of the number

of awards we expect will be issue upon the completion of the three-year performance period During fiscal 2009 management determined that

the performance criteria related to the awards granted in fiscal 2007 and 2008 are not expected to be met and none of these awards are expected

to vest Therefore in fiscal 2009 all previously-recorded expense of $950 for awards
relating

to the 2007-2009 period as well as the 2008-2010

period was reversed During fiscal 2008 we recorded favorable adjustment of $512 for the awards granted during fiscal 2006 as we expected an

attainment of 50 percent of
target

would be achieved compared with previously expected achievement of 100 percent of target Similarly in fiscal

2007 we recorded favorable adjustment of $781 related to awards granted in fiscal 2006 as we reduced the expected achievement to 50 percent

compared with previously expected achievement of 100 percent
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Following is summary of activity related to performance awards based Ofl the number of units expected to vest

Weighted Average

Grant Date

Fair Value

$15.05

Number of Units

Outstanding at September 30 2006 161625

Awards granted 142800 13.95

Awards forfeited 4375 14.62

Adjustment of 2006 awards 79525 15.05

Outstanding at September 30 2007 220525 14.34

Awards granted 173225 9.13

Awards forfeited 35813 10.85

Adjustment of 2007 awards 61275 13.94

Outstanding at September 30 2008H 296662 11.55

Awards issued 71487 15.05

Awards granted

Awards forfeited 49700 10.60

Adjustment of 2007 awards 46100 13.95

Adjustment of 2008 awards 129375 9.13

Outstanding at September 30 2009 0.00

Restricted Award Units

Beginning in fiscal 2006 the Company began granting restricted award units to key employees The restricted award unit agreements provide

for the award of restricted units with each unit representing one share of the Companys Common Shares The awards generally will vest on the

fourth anniversary of the award date subject to certain conditions specified in the agreement They were valued at the closing market price of the

Companys Common Shares on the date of grant and vest at the end of the performance period

Following is summary
of

activity
related to restricted award units

Number of Units

Weighted Average

Grant Date

Fair Value

Outstanding at September 30 2006 15925 14.90

Awards granted 25250 13.59

Awards vested 650 15.05

Awards forfeited 2425 14.57

Outstanding at September 30 2007 38100 13.96

Awards granted 21725 9.17

Awards vested 5425 12.36

Awards forfeited 1800 13.03

Outstanding at September 30 2008 52600 12.25

Awards granted 125800 2.99

Awards vested

Awards forfeited 24850 8.31

Outstanding at September 30 2009 153550 5.30

The total fair value of shares vested during fiscal year 2009 was $0

Directors Equity Plans

The Companys non-employee Directors receive an annual Common Share grant up to $58 The Common Shares are issued on quarterly basis

out of the Keithley Instruments Inc 2002 Stock Incentive Plan however no more than 4000 shares per quarter per Director may he issued

During fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007 we recorded expense of $394 $522 and $522 for the issuance of 103155 52524 and 41031 shares

respectively pursuant to this program based upon the fair market value of the shares at the date of grant The Board of Directors also may issue

restricted stock grants worth $75 to new non-employee Directors at the time of his or her election These restricted stock grants will vest over

Included in the awards outstanding at September 30 2008 are 71487 units for the 2006-2008 Plan awards that were vested hut were not yet

issued as the performance targets
could only be measured following September 30 2008 These awards were issued on November 2008 when

the Companys previous trading days closing stock price was $3.62 per share



3-year period One such grant was issued on February 13 2006 for 5098 shares based upon the fair market value at the date of grant of $14.71

per share We recorded expense of $9 $25 and $25 for this grant in fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively No grants were issued during

fiscal years 2009 2008 or 2007

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Companys current employee stock purchase plan is the 2005 Employee Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan as amended

the 2005 Plan The plan offers
eligible employees the opportunity to acquire the Companys Common Shares at small discount and without

transaction costs Eligible employees can only participate in the plan on year-to-year basis must enroll prior to the commencement of each plan

year and in the case of U.S employees must authorize monthly payroll deductions Non-U.S employees submit their contribution at the end of

the plan year mid-year enrollment option is also available for new employees For each plan yea the purchase price will be equal to 95 percent

of the market price at the end of the subscription period The provisions contained in the 2005 Plan eliminate the measurement of compensation

expense required under applicable U.S GAAP The 2005 Plan subscription period begins on July and ends onJune 30 In July 2009 2008 and 2007

17866 8785 and 6676 shares were purchased by employees under this plan at price of $3.80 $9.03 and $11.92 per share respectively total of

500000 Common Shares were reserved for purchase under the 2005 Plan of which 457263 remain available for purchase at September 30 2009

Note Income Taxes

Income loss before income taxes based on geographic location of the operation to which such earnings and losses are attributable is provided

below Because the Company has elected to treat certain foreign subsidiaries as branches for United States income tax purposes pretax losses

attributable to the U.S shown below may
differ from the pretax losses or income reported on the Companys annual U.S Federal income tax return

2009 2008 2007

United StatesUnited States 18551 8204 6216

Non U.S 815 3668 4531

19366 4536 1685

The provision benefit for income taxes is as follows

2009 2008 2007

Current

Federal 678 160 633

Non U.S 22 985 2503

State and local 26 86 45

Total current 726 1231 3181

Deferred

Federal state local 30100 3208 4034

Non U.S 312 34 483

Total deferred 30412 3174 4517

Total provision benefit 31138 1943 1336

The following is reconciliation between the provision benefit for income taxes and the amount computed by applying the U.S Federal income

tax rate of 34% to loss before taxes

2009 2008 2007

Federal income tax benefit at statutory rate 6585 1542 573

U.S loss without tax benefit 6307

State and local income taxes 26 199 29

Extraterritorial income exclusion 306
Research tax credit 243 880

Foreign losses without tax benefit 669 324 203

Benefit tax on non-U.S income 35 576 3062

Foreign tax credit carryforwards 545 2242
Valuation allowance 29967 15

Accruals and tax law changes 789 316 752
Other 108

Effective provision benefit for income taxes 31138 1943 1336
Effective provision benefit income tax rate 160.8% 428% 79.3%

The 2009 periods tax expense
included $29967 non-cash

expense
for valuation allowance recorded against U.S deferred tax assets which was

recorded during the first quarter of fiscal year 2009 When considering the need for valuation allowance against deferred tax assets we consider

all positive and negative evidence that would indicate whether or not we will be able to utilize the deferred tax assets As result of the overall

downturn in the U.S economy in the first quarter of fiscal year 2009 and more specifically
in the industries in which we operate our sales and

profitability were adversely impacted resulting in cumulative loss in the U.S for the twelve quarters ended December 31 2008 Additionally

during January 2009 we revised our fiscal 2009 forecast downward to reflect continuing weakness in the end markets in which we serve As
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result of this negative evidence we concluded that it was more likely
than not that we would not have the necessary

future taxable income to

realize the deferred tax assets accordingly we recorded the full valuation allowance on the U.S deferred tax assets

The research tax credit expired effective Decemher 31 2007 therefore the 2008 benefit only includes the credit through December 31 2007 On

October 2008 former President Bush signed the Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 The Act The Act included provision to retroactively

extend the research tax credit from January 2008 through December 31 2009 Because The Act was signed after September 30 2008 an

approximate $730 research tax credit for the period January 2008 through September 30 2008 has been reflected as discrete item in the first

quarter of the fiscal year ending September 30 2009 As result of the valuation allowance described above the $730 increase to the fiscal year

2008 research tax credit was not recognized as benefit to income tax expense

The Accruals and tax law changes in 2007 includes tax benefit of approximately $882 associated with the retroactive application of the research

tax credit from January 2006 through September 30 2006 This was not recorded during the fiscal year ended September 30 2006 as the

research tax credit had expired effective December 31 2005 The research tax credit was retroactively extended on December 2006

Significant components of the Companys deferred tax assets and liabilities as of September 30 2009 and 2008 are as follows

Deferred tax assets 2009 2008

Stock options 585 1161

Capitalized research and development 13936 14463

Inventory 3425 1919

Deferred compensation 864 1444

Tax credit carryforward 7751 8387

Depreciation 1743 1418

Warranty 142 205

Medical 204 134

State and local taxes 2202 1208

Net operating losses 9702 873

Pension 2647

Impaired assets 910 1148

Other

Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

1992 2928

46103 35288

Pension 2641

Other 74

Total deferred tax liabilities 2715

Valuation allowance 45052 1058
Net deferred tax assets 1051 31515

The valuation allowance at September 30 2008 related to net operating losses which the Company believed may not be realized due to the

uncertainty of future
profit

levels in certain taxing jurisdictions The increase in the valuation allowance during the year ended September 30 2009

was due to the additional valuation allowance taken against U.S deferred tax assets described above This increase included $29967 of U.S deferred

tax assets on hand at September 30 2008 plus an additional $14027 of deferred tax assets generated globally during the year ended September 30

2009

The changes in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets for fiscal years ending September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 are as follows

2009 2008 2007

Balance at beginning of
year 1058 1180 1141

Charged to costs and expenses 39088 415 213

Charged to other comprehensive loss 5024

Charged to other accounts 60 74
Deductions 178 463 174

Balance at end of
year 45052 1058 1180

During 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively the Company utilized $178 $463 and $174 of foreign losses against which valuation allowance was

previously recorded

At September 30 2009 the Company had tax credit and net operating loss carryforwards as follows

Year Expiration Commences

Alternative minimum tax credit 1896 Indefinite

Foreign tax credit 1887 2014-2019

RD credit 3966 2014-2024

U.S net operating losses 23688 2029

Foreign net operating losses 20 10-Indefinite



In accordance with U.S GAA.P the Company does not record the tax benefits of stock-based compensation in excess of the book deductions until

these benefits are realized using the tax law ordering rules The Company recorded credits of $92 $140 and $358 to additional
paid-in-capital during

the years ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively in connection with these excess tax benefits

The calculation of the Companys provision for income taxes involves the interpretation of complex tax laws and regulations Tax benefits for certain

items are not recognized unless it is more likely
than not that the Companys position will be sustained if challenged by tax authorities Tax liabilities

for other items are recognized for anticipated tax contingencies based on the Companys estimate of whether additional taxes will be due

In June 2006 the FASB issued interpretive guidance to create
single

model to address accounting for uncertainty in tax positions This amendment

which we adopted effective October 2007 clarified the accouting for income taxes by prescribing minimum recognition threshold tax position is

required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements As result of the adoption the Company recognized an increased accrued tax

liability of $3055 an increase to deferred tax assets of $3038 and decrease to retained earnings of $17

As of September 30 2008 the Company had gross unrecognized tax benefits of $5389 The total amount of such unrecognized benefits that

if recognized would benefit the effective tax rate was $3492 As of September 30 2009 the Company had approximately $5820 of total
gross

unrecognized tax benefits The total amount of such unrecognized tax benefits if recognized that would benefit the tax rate was approximately

$4001 The Company anticipates decrease in its unrecognized tax positions of approximately $650 to $750 over the next 12 months The anticipated

decrease is primarily due to the expiration of statutes of limitations in various jurisdictions The nature of the soon to be expiring tax positions

includes the allocation of income and certain deductions between jurisdictions

The following table reconciles the Companys gross unrecognized tax benefits for the fiscal years ended September 30 2009 and 2008

2009 2008

Balance Balance at October 5389 6440

Tax positions related to the current year

Additions 630 679

Tax positions related to prior years

Additions 249 2055

Subtractions 2319
Settlements with tax authorities 474

Lapses in statutes of limitation 448 992
Balance at September30 5820 5389

The Company records interest and penalties related to uncertain tax position as income tax expense As of September 30 2009 and 2008 the

Company accrued approximately $1764 and $1434 respectively for interest and penalties We recorded $330 and $660 for penalties and interest

related to uncertain tax positions during fiscal 2009 and 2008 respectively During the year ended September 30 2008 the Company settled audits

by the Internal Revenue Service for the tax year ended September 30 2004 and Germany for the tax years
ended September 30 1999 through

September 30 2004 The Company is no longer subject to examination in either the U.S or Germany for periods prior to this The Company was

recently notified by the Internal Revenue Service that it will be audited for the year ended September 30 2008 The Company has not been notified

of any other significant audits however it may be subject to examination in various U.S state and local jurisdictions for the tax years 2005 to present

as well as various foreign jurisdiction with varying statutes

Note Severance and Other Restructuring Charges

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2008 the Company recorded $1377 of severance and related charges resulting from global reduction in force

of approximately five percent of its total workforce The obligations incurred related to this action were completed as of September 30 2009

In
response to the continuing deterioration of economic conditions in January 2009 the Company implemented additional cost reduction

actions including reduction in its worldwide work force of approximately seven percent which includes the effect of an early retirement

program
These charges totaled $1190 the majority of which relate to amounts incurred in connection with termination benefits and are

included on the Severance and related charges caption on the consolidated statements of operations The majority of these payments are

substantially complete and the remaining balance is expected to be paid by September 30 2010

In February 2009 the Company announced that it would exit its S600 parametric test product line resulting in pretax charges of $5550 including

non-cash charges of $4498 Orders for the Companys S600 Series product line had been declining for many quarters as result of significant

reduction in capital spending by semiconductor customers for production test related applications The decision to exit the product line was

made based on the aforementioned facts and because the Company did not expect to be able to achieve results from this product line that are

consistent with its business model All activities
relating

to this action were completed by September 30 2009
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The $5550 charge was comprised of the following

Product line exit costs

Severance and other restructuring charges

Severance and related benefits 1052

Sales demonstration inventory write-off 1579

Write-down of fixed assets 341

Pension plan curtailment charge 28

Lease termination charge 10

3010

Inventory write-off and accelerated

depreciation for exited product line 2540

5550

As result of continued sluggish global demand for its products the Company announced in August 2009 another global workforce reduction

of approximately 10 percent including the effect of voluntary separation program Charges associated with this action were $2583 and are

expected to be paid by September 30 2010 We also incurred $143 for facilities consolidation and pension curtailment charges

At September 30 2009 $2000 of accrued severance charges was includetl in the Accrued payroll and related expenses caption of the

Consolidated Balance Sheet In total approximately 150 employees have been terminated under the various workforce reduction initiatives since

September 2008 The activities and our accruals relating to our restructuring and cost reduction programs are summarized below

BalanceOctober 2007

Expense recorded 1377

Cash payments 116

Foreign currency translation change

BalanceSeptember 30 2008 1252

Expense recorded 4823

Adjustments to previously-recorded expense

Cash payments 4077

BalanceSeptember 30 2009 2000

Note Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases certain office and manufacturing facilities and office equipment under operating leases Rent expense under operating leases

net of sublease income of $166 in 2009 $128 in 2008 and $116 in 2007 was $2369 $3161 and $3079 for 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Future minimum lease payments under operating leases as of September 30 2009 are as follows

2010 $2170

2011 1719

2012 851

2013 394

2014 157

After 2014 497

Total minimum operating lease payments $5788

In November 2009 the Company sold substantially all of its RF product line to Agilent see details in Note While Agilent assumed the Santa

Rosa lease the Company remains guarantor in the event of default Agilent will indemnify the Company for any amounts paid by the Company

to the landlord in event of any default Accordingly obligations of approximately $254 $305 and $178 under that lease and included in the above

table are not expected to be incurred by the Company for fiscal 2010 2011 and 2012 respectively

As previously disclosed in August 2006 the Companys Board of Directors formed Special Committee of independent directors to investigate

the Companys stock option practices since the beginning of the fiscal year ended September 30 1995 The Committee retained independent

counsel the Independent Counsel to assist it in the investigation Following appointment of the Special Committee the Company voluntarily

notified the staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission of the Special Committee investigation In September 2006 the Company received

notice that the SEC was conducting an inquiry into the Companys option grant practices

In December 2006 the Company announced the Special Committees findings which were adopted by the Board of Directors and were as follows

There was no evidence of backdating annual stock option grants prior to the date of approval by the Board of Directors

There was multi-day delay by management in setting the exercise price for annual stock option grants in 2000 2001 and 2002 The delay

resulted in the options having lower exercise price than the price on the date of Board approval

Although the Special Committee determined that the terms of the Companys stock incentive plans requiretl the options to he priced on the

date the Board approved them there was no finding of intentional misconduct on the part of senior management or any
other Keithley officer

director or employee responsible for the administration of the Companys stock option grants



Based on evidence gathered and analyzed by the Independent Counsel the Special Committee found the dates selected by management for

the annual grants in 2000-2002 are the appropriate measurement dates for accounting purposes Accordingly the Company was not required

to record any compensation expense with respect to the annual option grants in 2000-2002 and the Company was not required to restate its

financial statements as result of these grants

The Special Committee concluded that the Companys public filings regarding annual options grants during the years reviewed were accurate

there is no evidence that the Company timed the grant date or pricing of annual stock option grants to take advantage of material non-public

information and there was no wrong doing or lack of oversight by the Companys independent directors or the Human Resources and

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors the Compensation Committee

The Special Committee also reviewed the Companys practices regarding stock option grants other than its annual grants which are

generally grants of smaller numbers of options to new hires and to existing employees for promotions The Special Committee concluded

that management exceeded certain of the authority granted to management by the Companys stock option plans and the Compensation

Committee but that these grants involved small numbers of shares and were largely the result of ministerial errors by management

On August 2006 and August 15 2006 the Company was named as nominal defendant in two separate shareholder derivative suits Nathan

Diamond Joseph Keithley et al Cuyahoga County Ohio Court of Common Pleas Diamond and Michael Miller Joseph Keithley

et al Cuyahoga County Ohio Court of Common Pleas Miller Both suits were removed to the United States District Court for the Northern

District of Ohio on September 2006 Miller and Diamond were consolidated and on November 13 2006 the plaintiffs filed consolidated

Complaint the Consolidated Complaint

On October 23 2006 and October 24 2006 the Company was named as nominal defendant in two additional shareholder derivative lawsuits

Edward Hardy Joseph Keithley et al in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio and Mike Marks Joseph

Keithley in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio

The four suits were consolidated in single action In re Keithley Instruments Inc Derivative Litigation in the United States District Court for

the Northern District of Ohio Pursuant to the consolidation ordeq the Consolidated Complaint was the operative complaint in the action The

Consolidated Complaint alleged that various Company officers and/or directors manipulated the dates on which stock options were granted by

the Company so as to maximize the value of the stock options The suits alleged numerous claims including violations of Sections 10b lObS
and 20a of the Exchange Act breaches of fiduciary duties aiding and abetting corporate waste unjust enrichment and rescission

The Company and other defendants filed motion to dismiss the Consolidated Complaint After extensive briefing and oral argument in March

2008 the Court granted the defendants motion to dismiss in its entirety The Court granted plaintiffs leave to amend the Consolidated Complaint

within 30 days of the Courts Order In April 2008 plaintiffs filed Second Amended Complaint The Second Amended Complaint did not include

the claims under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 contained in the Consolidated Complaint The Second Amended Complaint alleges state law

claims for unjust enrichment fraud breach of fiduciary duty aiding and abetting breach of fiduciary duty and conversion The Company and the

other defendants filed motion to dismiss the Second Amended Complaint and on January 20 2009 the Court granted the defendants motion

to dismiss in its entirety

In the normal course of business the Company is subject to various
legal claims actions complaints and other matters While the results of such

matters cannot be predicted with certainty management believes that the final outcome of pending matters known to management will not have

material adverse impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company

Note Segment and Geographic Information

The Company reports single Test and Measurement segment Our net sales and long-lived assets by geographic area are presented below The

basis for attributing revenues from external customers to geographic area is the location to which the product is shipped

2009 2008 2007

Net sales

United States 26907 $37115 37275

OtherAmericas 1845 3174 2785

Germany 12786 20815 18238

Other Europe 21117 31177 29416

Japan 12851 16574 16688

China 12998 18679 16084

Other Asia 14023 24934 23172

$102527 $152468 $143658

Long-lived assets

United States 9751 $11749 $12294

Other 1349 1403 1405

$11100 $13152 $13699

Note Subsequent Events

On November 19 2009 the Company announced it entered into Purchase Agreement with Agilent with respect to the sale of its RE product line

Under terms of the Purchase Agreement the Company sold substantially all assets of the RF product line for cash purchase price of $9.0 million

and Agilent assumed related contractual including lease obligations product support and other liabilities and hired the majority of the employees
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of the RF team The Company is prohibited from competing against Agilent with respect solely to the RF product line until November 30 2012

Both Keithley and Agilent agreed to customary indemnification obligations with respect to the representations warranties and covenants of both

parties
in the Purchase Agreement As result of the transaction the Company expects to record pre-tax gain in fiscal 2010 of $2.0 million to $3.0

million

We have evaluated subsequent events through December 11 2009 which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued

Unaudited Quarterly Results of Operations

Following are the Companys unaudited quarterly results of operations for fiscal 2009 and 2008

First Second Third Fourth

Fiscal 2009

Net sales 31070 23961 23438 24058

Gross profit 17775 11012 12485 13825

Loss before income taxes 2135 10036 2825 4394

Net loss 32359 10279 3426 4440

Diluted loss per share 2.07 0.66 0.22 0.28

Fiscal 2008

Net sales 38438 39938 40955 33137

Gross profit 22704 24275 23764 19102

Income loss before income taxes 988 1397 125 6796

Net income loss 889 1185 39 4628

Diluted earnings loss per share .05 .07 .00 .29

Included in
gross profit

in the second quarter of fiscal 2009 are $2540 of charges for inventory write downs and accelerated depreciation

incurred in connection with the exit of the S600 product line

Included in loss before income taxes for the second quarter of fiscal 2009 are charges of $2540 described in above as well as additional

severance charges of $2242 $1579 for the write off of sales demonstration inventory $341 for write down of fixed assets and $38 for

pension curtailment and lease termination charges

Included in loss before income taxes for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 are severance charges of $2583 $128 due to an office consolidation

and $15 for pension curtailment

Included in net loss is valuation allowance of $29967 on taken on U.S deferred tax assets in the first quarter of fiscal 2009

Included in loss before income taxes for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 are severance and related charges of $1377

ITEM 9- CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL

DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company has evaluated under the supervision and with the participation of the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer the design and operation of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures as of September 30 2009 pursuant to Rule 13a-15b

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Based on that evaluation the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded

that the Companys disclosure controls and procedures are effective in ensuring that information required to he disclosed in the reports it files

or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and

Exchange Commissions rules and forms and that information was accumulated and communicated to the Companys management including

the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officefi as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15f under

the Exchange Act Our internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability

of our financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles Under the supervision and with the participation of our management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial OfficeL

we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Based upon the evaluation

management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of September 30 2009



Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections of any

evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP our independent registered public accounting firm has issued an attestation report on internal control over

financial reporting which appears under Item of this Form 10-K

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the Companys most recent quarter that have materially affected

or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer Certifications

The certifications of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer required under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act have been filed as

Exhibits 31a and 31b to this report

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None

PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information concerning the Companys directors its audit committee code of ethics procedures by which shareholders may recommend

nominees to the Board of Directors and compliance with Section 16a of the Exchange Act will be included in the Companys Proxy Statement

for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 14a of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and is incorporated herein by reference

Certain information required with respect to the executive officers of the Company is included under the caption Executive Officers of the

Registrant in Item of Part of this Annual Report and incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
See the caption Executive Compensation and Related Information in the Companys Proxy Statement to be used in conjunction with the

2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 14a of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 which section is incorporated herein by this reference

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information concerning security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management will be included under Principal Shareholders in

the Companys Proxy Statement to be used in conjunction with the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and to be filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 14a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 which section is incorporated herein by this reference

Information concerning securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans is included under Equity Compensation Plan

Information as of September 30 2009 in Item of Part II of this Annual Report and is incorporated herein by this reference

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information concerning director independence will be included under Corporate Governance in the Companys Proxy Statement to be used

in conjunction with the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section

14a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 which section is incorporated herein by this reference

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

See the caption Principal Accountant Fees and Services in the Companys Proxy Statement to be used in conjunction with the February 13

2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 14a of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 which section is incorporated herein by this reference



PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

a1 Financial Statements

Our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto are included in Item of this Annual Report

a2 Financial Statement Schedules

The following additional information should he read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements described in Item 15a1
Schedules other than those listed above are omitted because they are not required or not applicable or because the information is furnished

elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto

a3 Index to Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Description

3.1 Code of Regulations as amended on February 2008 Reference is made to Exhibit 3a of the Companys Quarterly Report on Form

10-Q for the period ended March 31 2008 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

3.2 Restated Articles of Incorporation adopted August 2008 Reference is made to Exhibit 3.1 of the Companys Quarterly Report on Form

10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 31 2009 File no 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

4.1 Specimen Share Certificate for the Common Shares without par value Reference is made to Exhibit 4a of the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30 1999 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.1 Credit Agreement dated as of March 30 2001 by and among Keithley Instruments Inc and Subsidiary Borrowers and the Lenders and

Bank One NA as agent Reference is made to Exhibit 101 of the Companys Quarterly Report on form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended

March 31 2001 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.2 First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated August 2002 Reference is made to Exhibit 10j of the Companys Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quarter year ended June 30 2002 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.3 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated March 28 2003 Reference is made to Exhibit 101 of the Companys Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31 2003 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

104 Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated March 30 2004 Reference is made to Exhibit 10m of the Companys Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31 2004 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.5 Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated March 30 2005 Reference is made to Exhibit 10n of the Companys Current Report on

Form 8-K dated March 30 2005 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.6 Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated September 27 2006 Reference is made to Exhibit 10r of the Companys Annual Report

on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30 2006 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.7 Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated March 31 2009 Reference is made to Exhibit 10.1 of the Companys Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31 2009 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.8 Pledge Assignment and Security Agreement by and between the Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank dated March 31 2009 Reference is

made to Exhibit 10.2 of the Companys Quarterly Report filed on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31 2009 File No 1-9965

which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.9 Employment Agreement with Mark Plush dated April 1994 Reference is made to Exhibit 10k of the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended September 30 1998 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.10 Amendment to Employment Agreement with MarkJ Plush dated December 31 2008 Reference is made to Exhibit 10.1 of the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 31 2008 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by

reference

10.11 Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into by the Company and each of Brian BachmanJames Griswold Leon Hendrix

Jr Joseph Keithley Dr Mohan Reddy Barbara Scherer and Elton White as members of the Companys Board of Directors On

December 2004 Reference is made to Exhibit 10.1 of the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 2004 File No

1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.12 Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into by the Company and each Mark Plush and Linda Rae as executive officers of the

Company on December 2004 Reference is made to Exhibit 10.2 of the Companys Current Report Ofl Form 8-K dated December

2004 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10 13 Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into by the Company and BrianJ Jackman as member of the Companys Board of Directors

on May 2005 Reference is made to Exhibit 10.1 of the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 2004 File No

1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.14 Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into by the Company and Thomas Saponas as member of the Companys Board of

Directors on May 112007 Reference is made to Exhibit 10.1 of the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 2004

File No 001-09965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

1015 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Reference is made to Exhibit 10e of the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year

ended September 30 1999 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

1016 Keithley Instruments Inc Deferred Compensation Plan Amended and Restated January 2005 Reference is made to Exhibit 10.7

of the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 31 2008 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is

incorporated herein by reference



10.17 Keithley Instruments Inc Supplemental Deferral Plan as Amended and RestatedJanuary 2008 Reference is made to Exhibit 10.6

of the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 31 2008 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is

incorporated herein by reference

10.18 1992 Stock Incentive Plan as amended Reference is made to Exhibit 10 of the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year

ended September 30 1999 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.19 1992 Directors Stock Option Plan Reference is made to Exhibit 10g of the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

September 30 1999 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.20 1996 Outside Directors Deferred Stock Plan as Amended and Restated Reference is made to Exhibit 10.2 of the Companys Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 31 2008 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.21 1997 Directors Stock Option Plan as Amended and Restated Reference is made to Exhibit 10.3 of the Companys Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 31 2008 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.22 Keithley Instruments Inc 2005 Employee Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan as amended August 2007 Reference is

made to Exhibit 10z of the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended September 30 2007 File No 1-9965 which

Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

1023 Keithley Instruments Inc 2002 Stock Incentive Plan as Amended and Restated January 2007 Reference is made to Exhibit 10.4

of the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 31 2008 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is

incorporated herein by reference

10.24 Keithley Instruments Inc form of option agreement
for use in connection with awards granted under the Keithley Instruments Inc 2002

Stock Incentive Plan Reference is made to Exhibit 101 of the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 2005 File No

1-9965 which Exhibits are incorporated herein by reference

1025 Keithley Instruments Inc form of option agreement for use in connection with awards granted under the Keithley Instruments Inc 2002

Stock Incentive Plan Reference is made to Exhibit 10aa of the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended September

30 2007 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.26 Keithley Instruments Inc form of restricted unit award agreement for use in connection with awards granted under the Keithley

Instruments Inc 2002 Stock Incentive Plan Reference is made to Exhibit 10.3 of the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K dated

October 2005 File No 1-9965 which Exhibits are incorporated herein by reference

10.27 Keithley Instruments Inc form of restricted unit award agreement for use in connection with awards granted under the Keithley

Instruments Inc 2002 Stock Incentive Plan Reference is made to Exhibit 10cc of the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

year ended September 30 2007 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.28 Keithley Instruments Inc form of Management Restricted Unit Award Agreement for use in connection with awards granted under the

Keithley Instruments Inc 2002 Stock Incentive Plan Reference is made to Exhibit 10.9 of the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q

for the fiscal quarter ended December 31 2008 File No 1-9965 which Exhibits are incorporated herein by reference

10.29 Keithley Instruments Inc form of performance award agreement
for use in connection with awards granted under the Keithley

Instruments Inc 2002 Stock Incentive Plan Reference is made to Exhibit 10bb of the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

year ended September 30 2007 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.30 Keithley Instruments Inc 2009 Stock Incentive Plan Reference is made to Exhibit 10.10 of the Companys Form 10-Q for the fiscal

quarter ended December 31 2008 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

10.31 Keithley Instruments Inc Annual Incentive Compensation Plan Amended and Restated as of January 2008 Reference is made to

Exhibit 10.1 of the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated December 31 2008 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated

herein by reference

10.32 Keithley Instruments Inc 2009 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan Reference is made to Exhibit 10.1 of the Companys Current Report

on Form 8-K dated October 31 2008 File No 1-9965 which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference

14.1 Code of Business Conduct Ethics

22.1 Subsidiaries of the Company

23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

31.1 Certification ofJoseph Keithley pursuant to Rule 13a-14a-15d-14a

31.2 Certification of MarkJ Plush pursuant to Rule 13a-14a-15d-14a

32.1 Certification ofJoseph Keithley pursuant to Rule 13a-14ib and 18 U.S.C Section 1350

32.2 Certification ofMarkJ Plush pursuant to Rule 13a-l4cb and 18 U.S.C Section 1350

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

The certifications furnished pursuant to this item will not be deemed filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act 15 U.S.C

78r or otherwise subject to the
liability

of that section Such certification will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any

filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act except to the extent that the
registrant specifically incorporates it by reference

Item 15b Exhibits See Index to Exhibits at Item 15a3 above

Item 15c Financial Statement Schedules Schedules required to be filed in response to this portion are listed above in Item 15a2

ITEM 15b EXHIBITS

See Index to Exhibits at Item 15a3 above

ITEM 15c FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Schedules required to be filed in response to this portion are listed above in Item 15a2
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